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Once again, it is my honour and privilege to be writing the 
introduction to the Annual Report for the 201 5/ 1 6 financial year 
for the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and the Dinokeng 
Project. The projects continue to be fine examples of how to 
convert the Gauteng Tourism Development Strategy (GTDS) into tangible reality. Work which has been executed in the past year 
indicates a commitment to productive partnerships, economic growth and community development. This Annual Report once again 
provides strong evidence of sustained service delivery, performance against targets and the tackling of important challenges during 
the 2015/16 financial year. 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site continues to grow into its role as an iconic world-class tourism destination. Of particular 
note has been the announcement of the Rising Star fossils as Homo naledi within the reporting year. The announcement of this new 
species and the circumstances surrounding it have had a huge impact on the continued world prominence of Gauteng's only World 
Heritage Site. 

The continued support by government for schools visiting Maropeng has underlined the objective of providing greater awareness 
of our universal African origins. Palaeoanthropology is being transformed by a continuous increase of women and particularly black 
women in this challenging field. which a few decades ago seemed to be the exclusive domain of white males. This underlines the 
massive contribution that fossils from South Africa have made in our universal understanding of human origins. 

Other critical success factors have included the competitive marketing. management and appropriate development of the greater 
tourism landscape. The Interpretation Centre Complex comprising of Maropeng and Sterkfontein have continued to provide a focal 
point and official visitor centres for this endlessly fascinating destination. 

The fossil casting project and the craft beneficiation project both serve to create opportunities for people from local communities to 
benefit from the World Heritage Site, whilst improving the quality of offerings for local and international tourists alike. 

During the 2015/16 financial year, the Dinokeng Project continued to play a significant role in contributing to the growth of local 
economies of the north eastern parts of the Gauteng Province and in improving the lives of ordinary communities living in these areas. 
The Dinokeng Project continued to sustain more than 500 permanent jobs in the Dinokeng Game Reserve. During the period under 
review, the Dinokeng Project focused on the empowerment of Small, Medium and Micro Enterprises (SMMEs) and cooperatives and 
has secured agreements with service providers to empower and support 1 0 new and 1 O existing SMMEs, five existing and three new 
cooperatives with 64 beneficiaries. Negotiations are continuing with the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development (GDID) 
to conclude an agreement for the development of the Roodeplaat Tourism Hub. 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve (DGR) is also progressing steadily and it appears to be close to being adequately stocked with breeding 
populations of all relevant species and adequate areas and habitat for them to live and breed successfully. The self-drive route has 
finally come into fruition in the year under review, the management of the DGR is progressing towards independence, as have the 
marketing efforts of the DGR. Government continues to provide a guiding and supporting role in this regard. 

During the year under review, the projects were restructured to the extent that the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Gauteng 
Tourism Authority, Dawn Robertson, will no longer continue at the helm of these projects, which were transferred to the leadership 
of the Gauteng Department of Economic Development, under the leadership of the Head of Department for Economic Development, 
Ms. Phindile Mbanjwa. I thank both of these strong leaders for their guidance and support of their staff, over a challenging period of 
organisational transition. 

On behalf of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG), I would like to convey my appreciation and support to all the stakeholders for 
their hard work and commitment to the development of this outstanding destination which continues to occupy a dominant place in 
the tourism landscape and one which has grown to become examples of real and lasting excellence. 

Mr Lebogang Maile 
Member of the Executive Council 
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The period of review saw the streamlining of the tourism 
landscape in line with the Gauteng Tourism Development 
Strategy. The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site, the 
Dinokeng Project and the Gauteng Tourism Authority (GTA) had 
all undergone intense scrutiny and a new structure has emerged to separate the demand side of tourism under GTA from the supply 
side of tourism which will fall under the Gauteng Department of Economic Development. 

It has always been the objective of these tourism projects to produce tangible benefits to as many people as possible. It is the duty of 
all organs of state to strive continuously to create a better life for all. This can only be achieved through the implementation of good 

governance as set out in the Batho Pele code of conduct, which is essential for all tiers of government to be effective. State employees 
should have a shared vision, discipline, commitment, a cooperative and collaborative spirit, loyalty, perseverance and ethical conduct. 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Management Authority (COHWHS MA) has built a solid basis for the conservation 
of universal history, which is encapsulated in remarkable hominin fossils which have been unearthed on our very doorsteps. We 
were excited at the announcement of a new species Homo naledi during the year under review. This announcement continued to 
demonstrate the value of the co-operation between the government, the private sector and the University of the Witwatersrand. The 
year under review also saw steady progress in scheduled projects. 

Dinokeng is a remarkable spatial destination, which, besides its dams and diamonds, has sunshine, and an ever expanding cluster of 

elite bushveld destinations almost within sight of central Tshwane. The Dinokeng "Big 5" Game Reserve is now completely stocked 
with these iconic species, and is the only free-ranging "Big 5" game reserve in the province. The self-drive routes were opened in the 
year under review and these promise to deliver to the public a product for which there is huge demand. 

During the 2014/15 financial year, the tourism industry has shown resilience, and even growth and prosperity at a time when other 
industries have declined, some of them alarmingly. We know that we have created destinations where tourism can continue to 
flourish. This is most meaningful when it creates work opportunities and precipitates skills transfer to people working in tourism and 
the cluster of industries that benefit from tourism. 

The staff of the Cradle of the Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects have contributed admirably towards the 

reputation of Gauteng as a tourism destination, and a leader in tourism project management and marketing. I believe this Annual 

Report is a tribute to those who serve these remarkable projects and will stand as a portfolio of evidence of effective and disciplined 
governance. 

The Annual Report clearly demonstrates accountability and wise spending, especially as the budgets of all departments have now 

been rationalised in line with the current and projected fiscus. The province continues to be marketed as a pivotal and often under
rated portion of the country where we say "It starts here!" 

Mr Makhukhu Mampuru 

Accounting Officer 

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects 
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Programme Overview Section 2 

SECTION 2: 

PROGRAMME OVERVIEW 

2.1 Mandate of the Programmes 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site (COHWHS) and Dinokeng Projects are gee-spatial development initiatives of the 
Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) aimed at developing premier tourist destinations in the economically depressed regions in the 
north Eastern and North Western parts of the Gauteng Province. 

The Gauteng government has been appointed as the Management Authority (MA) for the COHWHS in terms of the World Heritage 
Convention Act, 1999 (Act 49 of 1999). 

The COHWHS and Dinokeng trading entities are established as trading entities within the Gauteng Department of Economic 
Development (GDED) with a single Accounting Officer, the CEO, appointed in terms of section 36 (3)(b) of the Public Finance 

Management Act (PFMA), Act 1 of 1999. The CEO reports to the Member of the Executive Committee (MEC) for Economic 

Development. 

In 2009/10, the Gauteng Executive Committee commissioned a study (Barkofield) into the functioning of the Gauteng Provincial 

agencies, primarily those within the GDED, to assess, among other things, whether they are delivering in line with the initial intent 

of establishment, namely, improved efficiency and seNice delivery. The findings of the Barkofield review informed a decision by the 

Executive Committee in May 201 O that the GDED commence a process of agency reconfiguration within its portfolio, to align the 

agencies to the strategic delivery priorities of the province and to ensure that they are most appropriately structured to achieve the 
desired outcomes. The institutional review resulted in the recommendation to reconfigure GDED agencies into initially three, and later 
four, key entities, namely: 

A Growth and Employment Agency, responsible for investment promotion and enterprise development 

A Tourism Promotion Agency, responsible for marketing Gauteng as destination of choice 

An Industry, responsible for regulating the Liquor and Gambling as well as future industries to be identified; and later 

• A stand-alone SMME and Cooperatives Promotion Agency, responsible for providing financial and non-financial support to
SMMEs and cooperatives in all sectors of the economy

The Tourism Promotion Agency would incorporate the Gauteng Tourism Agency (GTA), the COHWHS and the Dinokeng Projects into a 

single agency. 

Various attempts were made to ensure that the merger of the three entities were realized. In January 2015, a decision was taken 
that this merger was no longer desirable and that a more focused and robust Tourism Portfolio within the GDED was essential. The 
reconfigured Tourism Portfolio will include, among others, the functions being carried out by the COHWHS and the Dinokeng Projects. 

Due to the transitional arrangements indicated above, the 2014-2019 strategic plans of both the GTA and the GDED are relevant to 
the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects.The envisaged Tourism Portfolio will become a new Branch within the Department and will focus 
on tourism aspects, other than those carried out by the newly configured GTA. The GTA will remain a stand-alone entity focusing on 
the tourism demand aspect while the Departmental Tourism Portfolio will focus on the tourism supply functions. 

The officials of the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects were incorporated into GDED with effect from 1 April 2015. Staff with marketing 
responsibilities were seconded from the GDED (COHWHS and Dinokeng) to the GTA, whilst staff from the GTA with tourism supply 
responsibilities were seconded to the GDED. 

The projects operate in a complex and challenging multi-disciplinary environment, requiring partnerships with various departments 
and strategic stakeholder groupings in support of a coordinated approach to project implementation. 

With regards to the management of the COHWHS, the Gauteng MEC for the COHWHS was appointed by the Minister of 
Environmental Affairs and Tourism as the Management Authority (MA) in terms of section 8 of the WHCA on 19 May 2006 (Notice 
28831 ). The WHCA obligates the COHWHS MA to achieve the objectives of the Act which is to: 

a) Provide for:

i. The cultural and environmental protection and sustainable development of, and related activities within the
COHWHS

ii. Giving effect to the Values of the Convention

b) Make the Convention part of the South African domestic law to create a framework to ensure that the Convention and the
operational guidelines are effectively implemented in the Republic of South Africa (RSA), subject to the Constitution and the
provision of the Act

c) Promote, manage, oversee, market and facilitate tourism and related development in connection with World Heritage

Sites in accordance with applicable law, the Convention and the operational guidelines in such a way that cultural and

ecological integrity is maintained

d) Ensure that everything done in terms of this Act conforms with the obligations of the RSA in terms of the Convention and

the operational guidelines
e) Ensure the identification and transmission to future generations of the cultural and natural heritage of the RSA

f) Ensure that effective and active measures are taken for the protection, conseNation, presentation and interpretation of the
cultural and natural heritage of the RSA

g) Encourage investment and innovation in connection with World Heritage Sites

h) Encourage job creation in connection with World Heritage Sites

i) Promote the development of culturally, environmentally, and if applicable, economically sustained projects in connection

with World Heritage Sites
j) Promote empowerment and advancement of historically disadvantaged persons in projects related to World Heritage Sites
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regulations for the proper administration of special nature reserves, national parks and world heritage sites promulgated in terms of 

the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act (NEMPM), Act 57 of 2003, for the COHWHS area. The promulgation of 
the site has enhanced the COHWHS MA to fulfil its mandate of protection, conservation and preservation of the site. 

2.2 Constitutional and Legal Framework 

The COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects comply with the following relevant national legislation within which government operates: 

Act 

Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act, 1983 

Environment Conservation Act, 1989 

Extension of Security of Tenure Act, 1997 

National Environmental Management Act, 1998 

National Environmental Management: Biodiversity 

Act, 2004 

National Environmental Management: 

Protected Areas Act, 2003 

National Water Act 1998 

Restitution of Land Rights Act, 1994 

Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 

Nature Conservation Ordinance, 1983 

2.3 Good Governance 

Number 

Act 43 of 1983 

Act 73 of 1989 

Act 62 of 1997 

Act 1 07 of 1998, 

as amended 

Act 1 o of 2004 

Act 5 of 2003, as amended 

Act 36 of 1998 

Act 22 of 1994 

Regulations 1 182 and 1183. 1 997 

Number 1 2 of 1983 

The responsibilities of the projects are also carried out in partnership with relevant statutory bodies and also comply with the legislative 
provisions of the following acts: 

Act 

Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 

Electronic Communications Security (Propriety) Limited 

Act, 2002 

Employment Equity Act, 1998 

Labour Relations Act, 1995 

Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 

Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 

Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 

Promotion of Equality and Elimination of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 

Protection of Information Act, 1982 

Public Finance Management Act, 1999 

Public Service Act, 1 994 

Skills Development Act, 1998 

Intergovernmental Relations Framework Act 2005 

Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 

2.4 Strengthening Accountability 

Number 

Act 75 of 1997 

Act 53 of 2003 

Act 68 of 2002 

Act 5 of 199B 

Act 66 of 1995 

Act 5 of 2000 

Act 2 of 2000 

Act 3 Of 2000 

Act 4 of 2000 

Act 84 of 1982 

Act 1 of 1999 

Act 1 03 of 1994 and Amendment Act of 1999 

Act 97 of 1998 

Act 13 of 2005 

Act 1 08 of 1 996 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng trading entities are multi-disciplinary in nature and their success requires 
active involvement of a multitude of stakeholders within and outside of government. 

The Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (GDARD) have continued to play a key role in the authorisation 

of Environmental Impact Assessments (EIAs) for new development projects. The Provincial Heritage Authority (PHA), South African 

Heritage Resource Agency (SAHRA) and the National Heritage Council (NHC) have similarly played a key role with regard to heritage 
and cultural resources management in the COHWHS. 

The cooperative governance and stakeholder engagement framework has continued to be used as a tool to communicate the focus of 
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the projects in terms of public participation during the current phase of project implementation, as well as a mechanism to strengthen 

accountability. The review of the framework provides a mechanism by which the projects receive critical feedback from stal<eholders, 
enabling such feedback to be in-cooperated into, and thus influence, the manner in which delivery is undertaken. It represents an 

attempt by the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects to partner resources available to ensure public participations are limited, and therefore 
need to be used judiciously to ensure that the objectives of the projects are achieved. The framework provides for engagement which 
is planned, purposeful and underpinned by the principles of Batho Pele. 

Elements of the existing cooperative governance and stakeholder engagement framework for the reporting period are set out below. 

2.4.1 Cooperative Governance: National Departments 

Table 1 below sets out the scope of engagement with National Departments: 

Department Scope of Engagement 

Department of Agriculture 

Department of Arts and Culture (DAC) 

Department of Defence (DOD} 

Department of Environmental Affairs (DEA} 

Department of Science and Technology (DST} 

Department of Public Works (DPWI 

Department of Rural Development and Land Reform (DRD&LR} and the Gauteng and 
North West Land Claims Commission 

National Department of Tourism (NDT} 

National Department of Water and Sanitation 

Compliance with Conservation of Agricultural Resources Act 

Alignment of plans and budgets for the interpretation and preservation of 
heritage and culture 

Support for relationship with SAHRA 

Specific interaction regarding the participation of the Department in the 
Dinokeng Game Reserve, with specific reference to the Oitholo Military Nature 
Reserve together with the DGR 

COHWHS Management Authority accountability to the Department 

Participation in the South African World Heritage Convention Committee 

Working on Fire (WOF} 

Best practice environmental and conservation management 

Promulgation of the DGR as a Protected Natural Environment 

Alignment of plans and budgets for scientific and research endeavours 

Support paleontological research in the COHWHS 

Support for relationship with National Research Foundation 

Rollout of the paleontology and archaeology strategy 

Specific interaction with regard to the identification and incorporation of state 
land in the DGR and in the Roodeplaat and Cullinan Tourism Hubs in the 
Dinokeng area 

Specific interaction to address settlement of land claims in the Dinokeng area 

Specific interaction to address land invasions in the COHWHS 

Signage 

Tourism-specific support for World Heritage Sites 

Community tourism 

Alignment of plans and budgets for tourism investment and marketing 

Support for the relationship with the South African Tourism (SATI and the 
Tourism Grading Council of South Africa (TGCSA} 

Facilitate access to poverty alleviation funding 

Resource management for Roodeplaat 

_____________________________ ...,L ___ w_
a

_t _er
_
resource management In the COHWHS 
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2.4.2 Cooperative Governance: National Government Agencies 

Table 2 below sets out the scope of engagement with national government agencies: 

Government Agency Scope of Engagement 

South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) 

South African Tourism (SAT) 

SANPARKS 

Extensive involvement in the management of the listed fossil sites in the COHWHS 

Support for regulatory compliance for the development of Cullinan in Dinokeng 

Support for international and domestic tourism destination marketing 

Tourism intelligence 

People and Parks Programme 

2.4.3 Cooperative Governance: Provincial Government Departments and Agencies 

Table 3 below indicates the scope of interaction with provincial departments and government agencies within the GPG: 

Department Scope of Engagement 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 
{GDEDJ 

Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural 
Development (GOARD) 

Gauteng Department of Community Safety (GDCSJ 

Gauteng Department of 

Infrastructure Development {GDID) 

Gauteng Department of Education (GDEJ 

Gauteng Department of Human Settlements {GDHSJ 

Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport {GDRTJ 

Gauteng Provincial Treasury 

Gauteng Enterprise Propeller (GEPJ 

Gauteng Tourism Authority {GTA) 

Gauteng Growth and Development Agency (GGDA) 

Ga-Rankuwa Hotel School (GHS) 

Tourism Enterprise Partnership (TEP) 

Alignment of strategic and business plans and budget with GDED and its agencies 

Direct reporting line as trading entity of the Department 

Implementation of departmental plans 

Management Authority for the COHWHS 

Specialist environment and conservation advice regarding the management of the COHWHS 

Proclaim the DGR as a protected area 

Alignment of programme budgets for environmental and conservation management. including EIA 
authorisations and natural resource management projects for COHWHS and Dinokeng projects 

Bilateral interaction to address general community safety, specialist input on safety and security for the tourism 
sector, and traffic law enforcement and road safety initiatives on tourism routes 

Land ownership and use for tourism development 

School visits to COHWHS and Dinokeng and awareness creation support for the projects Include evolution in 
school curriculum 

Alignment of exhibition upgrades at Sterkfontein and Maropeng to be in line with curriculum 

Management of state land 

Co-management of housing challenges in the COHWHS 

Support for coordination with local government in Dinokeng and the COHWHS 

BIiaterai interaction to resolve municipal demarcations of the COHWHS area 

Issue-based interaction with GORT as a planning and implementing agent for roads network and signage 
budgeted by the COHWHS and Dinokeng projects 

Planning and implementing agent for roads network and signage budgeted by the COHWHS Trading Entity 

Guidance and advice for compliance on acts and regulations governing the public service 

Coordination through GDED Inter-agency Forum 

Support for Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise development in both project areas 

Joint initiatives for international and domestic tourism destination marketing for both projects 

Implementation of joint projects 

Coordination through GDED Inter-agency Forum 

Support for investment promotion for both projects 

Training of communities 

SMME development in both COHWHS and Dinokeng projects 

II 
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2.4.4 Cooperative Governance: Neighbouring Provinces 

Neighbouring provinces also play an important role in the implementation, due to the geospatial areas traversing more than one 

province. The scope of work in relation to interaction with neighbouring provinces is set out in Table 4: 

Table 4 below sets out the scope of work with neighbouring provinces: 

Province Scope of Engagement 

North West 

Limpopo 

Mpumalanga 

Alignment of plans for serially listed Fossil Hominid Sites of South Nn'ca through 
a Joint Management Committee 

Joint drafting of Statement of Outstanding Universal Value for the Fossil 

Hominid Sites of South Africa 

Participation in and completion of reporting for the Fossil Hominid Sites 
of South Africa in the United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
Organisation jUNESCOI Second Cycle of Periodic Reporting for Africa 

Land use planning 

Alignment of plans for serially listed Foml Hominid Sites of South Africa through 
a Joint Management Committee Issuance of permits for the introduction of 
game into parts of the DGR that traverse the Limpopo boundary 

Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and expansion 

Alignment of plans for DGR implementation and expansion 

The North West Province is crucial in ensuring the sustainable management of the World Heritage Site in its entirety, as 10% of the 

core site falls within the province. Collaboration with the province is on the management agenda of the serially-listed sites and 
implementation measures for effective land use planning and control. 

The Mpumalanga and Limpopo Provinces are critical for ensuring the full development of the Dinokeng Game Reserve, as it is 
envisaged to expand into neighbouring portions of the two provinces. A successful partnership with Limpopo and Mpumalanga 
necessitates an alignment of economic and tourism development plans of neighbouring provinces and local authorities. 

2.4.5 Cooperative Governance: Local Government 

Collaborative relations with municipalities remain one of the important interactions for the sustainable development of the COHWHS 

and Dinokeng Projects. The COHWHS is largely located in the West Rand District Municipality and the Mogale City Local Municipality. 

Ten percent of the site falls within the Bojanala Platinum District Municipality in the North West Province. Dinokeng falls within the 

boundaries of the Tshwane Metropolitan Municipality. This project area expands to parts of the Limpopo and Mpumalanga Provinces. 

The scope of engagement with municipalities includes the establishment of local economic development strategies, land use 
management and housing infrastructure. Table 5 below sets out engagement with local municipalities: 

Municipality Scope of Engagement 

City of Tshwane 

West Rand District Municipality 

Mogale City Local Municipality 

Alignment of strategies and plans for the successful development of the projects and for the local economic 
development strategies of local government 

Alignment of strategies and plans for the optimal management of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

Alignment of strategies and plans for the optimal management of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

2.4.6 Cooperative Governance: Other Stakeholder Engagements 

The scope of engagement with each stakeholder group is outlined in Table 5: 

Stakeholder Scope of Engagement 

Landowners 

Occupiers !people residing on land with the implicit 
consent of the landowner) 

Tourism business owners 

Investors, particularly tourism business investors 

Management and engagement with fossil site landowners in the COHWHS Land use and development 
authorisations 

Interested and affected parties in development plans 

Participation as landowners in the DGR 

Land use and development authorisations 

Interested and affected parties in development plans 

Cooperation on tourism research 

Joint marketing initiatives 

Tourism research 

Tourism development 

Tourism destination marketing 

Grading of tourism establishments 

Destination brand marketing 
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Stakeholder Scope of Engagement 
DGR Landowners· Association 

DGR Management Association IDGRMA) and DGR 
Game Enterprises 

Maropeng a'Afrika Leisure IPty) LTD 

Fossil site landowners 

Scientists 

Palaeo-Anthropological Scientific Trust !PAST) 

University of the Witwatersrand 

Cullinan Diamond Mine 

Cullinan Tourism Association 

Roodeplaat Tourism Association 

Cullinan Heritage Society 

Cullinan Chamber of Commerce 

Wildlife Ecological Investment 

Onderstepoort Veterinary Institute 

Implementation of the start-up phase and expansion of the DGR 

Representation of the interests of the state as a landowner, by the Dinokeng Trading Entity in the DGR MA 

Representation of the interests or the state as a shareholder in DGR Game Enterprises by the Dinokeng Trading 
Entity 

Implementation of agreement of collaboration for the development and operation of Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein, the official visitor centres to the COHWHS 

Implementation of landowner agreements for the monitoring and evaluation of paleontological digs at 13 
excavated sites 

Specialist input and support for research and scientific endeavour specific to the site 

Planned future engagement with an Advisory Committee for specialist input and support for research and 
scientific endeavour 

Management of the COHWHS Public Private Partnership IPPP) concession contract for Maropeng and 
Sterkfontein Caves 

Collaboration in the announcement of scientific finds 

Use of land in Cullinan to promote tourism development 

Facilitate tourism development and promotion in Cullinan 

Facilitate tourism development and promotion in Roodeplaat 

Preservation of heritage in Cullinan 

Promotion of tourism 

Ecological management of Dinokeng Game Reserve 

Animal health issues in Dinokeng Game Reserve 

2.5 Monitoring and Evaluation 

The COHWHS and Dinokeng trading entities operate in a matrix management environment. Projects in this environment cut across 
organisational boundaries and involve staff required to report to their own line manager as well as to the project manager. 

Table 6 below shows the monitoring mechanisms applicable to the MEC, acting Deputy Director General {DDG}: Economic Sector and 
Industry Support, and Chief Directors, who are responsible for ensuring that the outcomes and outputs reflected in the strategic plan 

and the Medium Term Expenditure Framework {MTEF) are achieved. 

Table 6: Monitoring and Accountability Mechanisms 

Name of Entity Monitored By Monitoring Mechanism 

Member of the Executive 

Council 

Acting DDG : Economic Sector and Industry Support 

Chief Director: Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and 

Dinokeng 

Chief Director: Strategic Planning and Support 

Gauteng Legislature/Premier 

Executive Council/Auditor-General 

Gauteng Legislature 

MEC 

Auditor-General 

Audit Committee Charter Head of Department 

CEO 

CEO 

Strategic plans and quarterly performance reports 

Annual reports 

Annual Performance Plan !APP) 

Provincial EXCO 

MINMEC meetings 

Strategic plans and budget 

Monthly reports 

Quarterly reports 

Annual reports 

Provincial EXCO meeting 

Provincial Head of Department Forum 

APP 

GDED Agencies CEO Forum 

Strategic plans and budget 

Monthly reports 

Quarterly reports 

Annual reports 

Strategic plans and budget 

Monthly reports 

Quarterly reports 

Annual reports 

II 
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As the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects were integrated into the GDED as from 1 April 
2015, the vision, mission and values of GDED have been adopted by the Projects. 

Vision 

A radically transformed, modernised and re-industrialised economy in Gauteng, manifesting decent work, economic inclusion and 

equity. 

Mission 

The mission of the GDED in pursuit of its vision is to: 

• 
• 
• 

Values 

Ensure radical transformation, modernisation and re-industrialisation (TMR) of the Gauteng economy 

Providing and enabling policy and legislative environment for equitable economic growth and development 
Develop and implement programmes and projects that will : 

0 Revitalise Gauteng's township economies 
0 Build new, smart, green, knowledge-based economy and industries 
0 Ensure decent employment and inclusion in key economic sectors 

 Facilitate radical economic transformation, modernisation and re-industrialisation �ࢩ°
0 Include the marginalised sectors of women, youth and persons with disabilities in mainstream economic 
activities 
0 Establish appropriate partnerships for delivery and ensure the GDED effectively delivers on its mandate 

These values are informed by the vision and mission of the Department, namely: 

• Serve as a centre of excellence in leading radical economic transformation, modernisation and re-industrialisation of
Gauteng's economy 

• Provide ethical, consultative and people-focused services 
• Facilitate equity, redress and access to economic opportunities and decent employment
• Ensure that Gautengs economic profile reflects its demographic profile
• Practice transparent, participatory and good governance at an internal level 
• Foster high levels of professionalism, innovation, effectiveness, efficiency and the practice of Bathe Pele amongst the staff 

of GDED and all its implementation agencies

3.1 Broad Strategic Objectives of the Projects 

The strategy of the COHWHS and Dinokeng trading entities is to invest in infrastructure and tourism facilities in order to enhance 
private sector investment in tourism business activities in the project areas. The rationale for the development of the two projects 
is to contribute to economic growth and job creation in the impoverished north-western and north-eastern regions of the Gauteng 
Province. The key strategic objectives are to: 

a) In the case of the COHWHS, to promote scientific research, educational and learning opportunities and also act as the 
Management Authority for the UNESCO-declared World Heritage Site in accordance with relevant legislations. 

b) Establish Public Private Partnership (PPP) transactions for the development of significant tourism components of the 
network of tourism facilities connected by scenic routes. 

c) Invest in strategic economic infrastructure to stimulate private sector investment in the tourism sector. 
d) Integrate, coordinate and optimise the sustainable use of resources.
e) Progressive implementation of the Master Plan for the development and management of the destination.
f) Tourism research and planning for the destination.
g) Destination marketing to increase domestic and international leisure and business tourism to the destination.

h) Advocacy, including targeted stakeholder engagement, general stakeholder engagement and cooperative governance.
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3.2 

Organisational Systems and Resources for the Delivery of Services I Section 3 

Organisational Structure of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and 

Dinokeng Programmes 

The approved organisational structure of the COHWHS and Dinokeng Project is depicted in the organogram below. 

3.2.1 
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The COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects are individually registered trading entities, with core functions being provided to the two 
projects. Transversal functions such as research and planning, fundraising, events and marketing (FEM), finance and administration 
are provided to the core functions. 

The COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects, and thus the staff, were incorporated into the GDED as from 1 April 201 5. Staff with marketing 
responsibilities were seconded from the GDED (COHWHS and Dinokeng) to the GTA, whilst staff from the GTA with tourism supply 
responsibilities were seconded to the GDED. In addition to this, a number of COHWHS functions that sat under the Research and 
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Planning and Fundraising. Events and Marketing Units were incorporated under the COHWHS Programme. The Ga-Rankuwa Hotel 
School was also incorporated into the GDED, and staff was placed as an interim measure into the organisational structure of the 
COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects. Provision has been made for these posts in the new structure of GDED, and staff will be placed in 
the posts when the new structure has been approved by the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA). 

An Acting Deputy Director General was appointed to manage the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects, as well as the staff that were 
seconded to perform tourism supply functions and the Ga-Rankuwa Hotel School. The acting DOG reported directly to the HOD of 
GDED on these functions. 

The financial staff of the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects reported directly to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). 

3.2.2 COHWHS Programme 

The primary function of the COHWHS Management Authority is the protection and conservation of the elements which constitute 
what UNESCO terms the Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the World Heritage site. These are the existing proclaimed fossil sites, 
as well as the biophysical environment on which the existing and as yet undiscovered sites exist. This is done through implementation 
of measures and projects that will ensure the conservation and protection of the natural and cultural resources associated with the 
site, while at the same time ensuring tangible benefits and interpretation for surrounding communities and the public at large. The 
encouragement of tourism development as an economic driver enhances the Management Authority's mandate in terms of its heritage 
and conservation responsibility. 

The COHWHS Programme, in addition to its Management Authority responsibility, is also responsible for the management of 
development of infrastructure and the network of tourism centres as envisaged in the COHWHS Master Plan. The component is 
divided into the following sub-programmes: 

• The Interpretation Centre Complex (ICC) sub-programme manages Public Private Partnership contracts signed with the
concessionaires/s and manages further development in the centres

• The Orientation Centres sub-programme manages the development of scenic routes that connect the network of tourism
facilities

• The Public Participation and Community Benefits sub-programme creates awareness about the project activities and enables
the community to participate in the economic opportunities presented by the site

3.2.3 Dinokeng Programme 

The Dinokeng Programme is responsible for the management of strategic infrastructure developments and the network of tourism 
hubs. as envisaged in the Dinokeng trading entitys Master Plan. The component is divided into three sub-programmes: 

• The Public Private and Community Benefits sub-programme creates awareness about the project activities and enables the
community to participate in the economic opportunities presented by the site

• The Dinokeng Game Reserve sub-programme manages and oversees the development of the "Big S" game reserve in 
Dinokeng

• The Cullinan and Roodeplaat tourism hubs sub-programme manages and coordinates the establishment of these hubs and
the development of PPPs
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3.2.4 

Organisational Systems and Resources for the Delivery of Services I Section 3 

Research and Planning Programme 

The Research and Planning Programme is responsible for the monitoring and evaluation of the impacts of the development of the 
destinations. Additionally, the Management Authority's responsibility as indicated in the World Heritage Convention Act resides in 
this unit, but has been functionally managed by the COHWHS Programme since 2012. The component is divided into four sub
programmes: 

• 

• 

• 

Programme Monitoring and Evaluation sub-programme: This unit is responsible for developing strategic plans and Annual 
Performance Plans for the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects. In addition, it is also responsible for monitoring and evaluating 
the implementation of these plans 
Tourism and Investment Monitoring and Evaluation sub-programme: This unit conducts strategic research which is used to 
inform the marketing, investment and band management strategy for both projects 
Integrated Environmental Conservation Management sub-programme: This unit manages most of the Management 
Authority function that has been delegated to the COHWHS Project by the National Minister of Environmental Affairs, in 
terms of protecting and conserving the World Heritage Site for future generations 
Land Use Management or NEMPM sub-programme: This unit manages all development applications in the World Heritage 
Site as well as the implementation of a system of cycling and mountain bike trails in the COHWHS. 

The Research and Planning Programme has also been providing tourism development functions, pending the establishment of such a 
directorate in the revised GDED organisational structure. 

The Integrated Environmental Conservation Management and Land Use Management responsibilities were functionally managed by 
the Programme Manager: COHWHS in the reporting period. 

3.2.S Fundraising, Events and Marketing Programme 

The Fundraising, Events and Marketing Programme is responsible for marketing, brand management, mobilisation of funds, 
management of the Cradle Trust, and for organising and managing events for both destinations. The component is divided into three 
sub-components: 

• The Fundraising sub-programme mobilises funds from international and domestic donor organisations, corporate, 
government, as well as soliciting brand partnerships with corporates to increase the destinations' marketing mileage. The
management of the Cradle Trust sits with this sub-programme

• The Events sub-programme manages all Very Important People (VIPI visits and events, media events, and targeted events 
to celebrate milestone achievements. This sub-unit also manages the destinations representation at international and local 
exhibitions 

• The Marketing and Public Relations sub-programme manages the Intellectual Property Brand and its users, marketing and
brand awareness, public relations activities, collateral and website development 

Due to the reconfiguration of the Tourism Portfolio within GDED and the Gauteng Tourism Authority, the officials that are employed in 
the Events, and Marketing and Public Relations sub-programmes, were seconded to the GTA. 

The functions of the Fundraising sub-programme were functionally managed by the Programme Manager: COHWHS in the reporting 
period. 

3.2.6 Administration Programme 

As the majority of the functions that were performed by the Administration Programme have been taken over by GDED and some 
have been incorporated into the Programmes (e.g. project administration), focus was given to integrate functions and staff into 
GDED during the period under review. This inter alia, included the setting up of offices, facilitating the integration of ICT and human 
resources functions in GDED. 

3.2.7 Financial Programme 

The Financial Management Programme has been incorporated into the functional responsibility of the CFO of GDED. It ensures a 
sustained culture of financial management compliance in the Department, and provides analysis and advice on fiscal policy and public 
finances, intergovernmental financial relations, expenditure planning and priorities. The programme also manages the annual budget. 

3.4 Human Resource Development Composition 

The human resources development component of the COHWHS and Dinokeng Projects is now the responsibility of GDED, and 
includes training, bursaries and awareness sessions. 

3.5 Service Providers 

The approach of the projects is to procure services from service providers in the event that expertise does not exist and/r where the 
service is not required on a permanent basis. To this end, a number of service providers were utilised during the reporting period. 

A summary of the key service providers is included in Financial Statements. 
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CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 

Introduction 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site is the only World Heritage Site in Gauteng and one of the most prolific sites in the 
world in terms of the discovery of fossils of ancient human ancestors and their relatives. It was declared a World Heritage property 
by UNESCO on 2 December 1999. This unique area, not far from Johannesburg has yielded some of the most important fossil 
finds of extinct fauna, particularly fossils of ancient human ancestors dating as far back as more than 3 million years before present. 
Together with the Makapan Valley site in Limpopo Province and the Taung Child site in North West Province, these three sites together 
constitute what UNESCO has inscribed as the Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa. 

These are sites of outstanding universal value because of the wealth of significant hominin fossils that have been unearthed here 
including Mrs Pies, Little Foot, the Taung Child Skull, Australopithecus sediba as well as Homo naledi, which was revealed to the world 
by Professor Lee Berger of the University of the Witwatersrand in September 2015. All of these finds provide an incredible window into 
our distant past and how we have evolved as a species. 

The recently excavated Rising Star site, together with the world famous Sterkfontein Caves as well as many other fossil sites in the 
COHWHS, have yielded some the richest early human ancestor sites on the planet. Work on fossils found in this important World 
Heritage Site has been featured in a large number of prestigious scientific works as well as the popular media, including National 

Geographic, Scientific American, Time and many other publications. The Malapa Fossil site, like other fossil sites in the Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site, still holds precious fossil material and excavations are likely to continue at these sites, for decades to 
come. More exciting announcements around finds from the Rising Star site are imminent and are likely to focus world attention once 
again on the COHWHS. 

The greatest highlight for the COHWHS in this financial year was the announcement and unveiling by Professor Lee Berger of the 
University of the Witwatersrand in September 201 5 of the discovery of a new human ancestor, Homo naledi, from the Rising Star site, 
in September 201 5. An historic number of hominin fossils have been excavated from the Rising Star site - over 1 550 to date - making 
the Rising Star site the richest early human ancestor site on the African continent, and further bolstering the World Heritage Site's 
reputation as the richest fossil hominin site in the world today. 

The World Heritage Site is managed on behalf of the Minister of Environmental Affairs by the COHWHS Management Authority. The 
primary goal of the Management Authority is to protect and conserve the site using existing laws and regulations, while at the same 
time offering interpretation for the site and developing the tourism potential of the site. The Management Authority also helps to 
promote further scientific research, encourages community participation to benefit local communities and assists in stimulating tourism 
and ultimately local economic development. This is done through implementation of measures and projects that will ensure the 
conservation and protection of the natural and cultural resources associated with the site. 

The official interpretation centre of the site is called Maropeng which in Setswana means 'returning to the place of origin' and was 
officially opened to the public in December 2005. This architecturally unique centre allows every visitor to embark on a journey 
of discovery that begins with the birth of our planet, through the history of humankind and into the future. Maropeng also has 
an original fossil display area where fossils are replenished regularly, education and conferencing facilities, a boutique hotel with 
panoramic views and a restaurant. The world famous Sterkfontein Caves which has yielded many significant fossil finds to date, is 
owned by the University of Witwatersrand (Wits) who are partners in the management of the site. This site continues to attract many 
visitors, boasts a scientific exhibition and offers the opportunity for a guided tour of the caves. 

Since its inscription on the World Heritage List, the Management Authority has progressively implemented a Master Plan for the site. 
There are many challenges with regard to development pressure and tourism development, amongst others, but the strides made thus 
far have ensured that the site is protected and is steadily growing and earning a reputation as an iconic site of global significance and 
a 'must see' tourism destination in Gauteng, South Africa. 
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4.2 Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The strategic objectives of the COHWHS are as follows: 

Strategic Objective 1 : The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site is a well-managed 

and maintained World Heritage Site that contributes to scientific 

research, community beneficiation and the tourism visitor economy. 

The activities that will be implemented as part of this objective include: 

Protecting, conserving and interpreting the Outstanding Universal Value (OUV) of the site 

Facilitating and supporting ongoing scientific research in the site 
Ensuring tangible community beneficiation and growth in the visitor economy of the COHWHS 

Strategic Objective 2: The COHWHS is the anchor for socio-economic development in the 

Western Corridor. 

Activities in terms of this objective include: 

• Ensuring that development within the COHWHS maintains the OUV
• Supporting the participation of small enterprises and cooperatives in the visitor economy of the COHWHS
• Collaborate with all role-players involved in the socio-economic development of the Western Corridor

Still driven by the original Master Plan, there are a number of initiatives that are currently being implemented by the Management 
Authority in the COHWHS. As a result, the destination has become increasingly popular with the cycling fraternity, for example, cycle 
lanes have been constructed and the first phase of a mountain bike trail ( 18 km) has been completed with a further 13 km of the loop 

trail presently being conceptualised, making this a non-motorised and cycling destination of choice in Gauteng. 

A fossil casting project and a craft beneficiation programme employing local community members have been successfully implemented 

in the project area. The crafters have an outlet at the official visitor centre in the COHWHS. The Management Authority will also 
continue to sponsor schools from the surrounding areas for excursions to Maropeng and Sterkfontein as part of its education 
outreach programme. The sponsorship of learners to the visitor centres of Maropeng and Sterkfontein has increased from 1 000 to 2 
000 learners in the reporting period. This is a valuable resource for teachers and learners alike, as fossil studies and evolution forms 
part of the curriculum from Grade 1 O upwards. The visitor centres will continue to play an important role in profiling the science, in 
creating awareness of the importance of the site and for espousing the importance of the World Heritage Site and the World Heritage 
Convention. 

The main focus of the Management Authority for this World Heritage Site into the future remains the protection, conservation and 

management of the elements which constitute what UNESCO terms the Outstanding Universal Value of the site. These are the 

existing proclaimed fossil sites as well as the biophysical environment on which the existing and yet undiscovered sites exist. This is 

done through implementation of measures and projects that will ensure the conservation and protection of the natural and cultural 
resources associated with the site, while at the same time ensuring tangible benefits and interpretation for surrounding communities 
and the public at large. The encouragement of tourism development as an economic driver enhances the Management Authority"s 
mandate in terms of its heritage and conservation responsibility. 

The World Heritage Site cannot be managed in isolation from the stakeholders and communities directly impacted on by the site. A 

greater impetus has been given, and more needs to be done, to forge closer ties with all stakeholders in collectively managing and 

preserving this South African treasure for current and future generations of the world. There is currently a process underway being led 
by the Department of Environmental Affairs of engaging all stakeholders in terms of the future management of the COHWHS. 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Unit manages a number of sub-units as follows: 

a) Interpretation Centre Complex (Management of the official visitor centre Maropeng and Sterkfontein Caves)

b) Public Participation and Community Projects (includes the management of the Cradle Trust)
c) Integrated Conservation and Environment Management and Land Use Management in terms of the relevant legislation

such as the National Environmental Protected Areas Act (NEMPAA), The National Environmental Management Act (NEMA)

and the World Heritage Convention Act (WHCA), amongst others
d) Orientation Centres/Infrastructure Management (includes roads maintenance, signage etc.)



r Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Tourism Projects Annual Report 2015/2016 

The Interpretation Centre Complex (ICC) sub-programme manages the visitor centres and museums in the COHWHS, namely, 
Sterkfontein Caves and Maropeng. 

The Public Participation and Community Benefits sub-programme creates awareness about the project, manages public participation 

activities and assists the community to participate in the economic opportunities presented by the site, through community projects 

and training and the implementation of community projects. In addition, the fundraising element of the sub-unit is responsible 
for managing the established Cradle Trust which oversees implementation and disbursement of funds for community projects and 

promotion of further scientific research. 

The Integrated Environment and Conservation sub-programme manages all work related to the conservation and environmental 

management of the site within the context of the OUV of the site, including management of the fossil sites and monitoring of the 

health of the ground water in the World Heritage Site catchment area. This sub-programme is also responsible for the institutional 
arrangements and management of the site, together with the National Department of Environmental Affairs, and the Management 

Authorities for the Taung Child Skull World Heritage Site and the Makapan Valley World Heritage Site. The Management Authority's 

responsibility includes representation on the South African World Heritage Convention Committee, the South African Site Managers 

Forum and the Joint Management Committee of the Fossil Hominid Sites of South Africa. 

The Management Authority works very closely with the Department of Environmental Affairs in this regard. This unit has also 

appointed the Working on Fire team as part of the National Department of Environment Affairs Extended Public Works Programme. 
This team is highly trained and members are drawn from the communities residing within the boundaries of the heritage site. Apart 

from fire prevention and suppression, the team also provides other resource management services like the maintenance of the 
gateways, management of the fossil sites, erosion control and alien plant eradication. 

The Integrated Environment and Conservation sub-programme also includes a Land Use Management sub-unit, which manages all 
development applications in the World Heritage Site in terms of the appropriate legislation. This unit is also currently responsible for 

the implementation of a system of mountain bike trails and cycle lanes in the World Heritage Site as part of a process of opening the 
site to cycling tourism. 

All institutional arrangements and engagements with UNESCO are also managed in this sub-unit. 

The Orientation Centres/Infrastructure unit is primarily responsible for all infrastructure and signage related matters in the World 

Heritage Site and works closely with a number of partners and stakeholders, such as the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport 
(GDRT) and landowners. 

4.3 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review 

Interpretation Centre Complex (Maropeng and Sterkfontein Visitor Centres) 

Gauteng Provincial Government has continued to provide operational funding to Maropeng in the year under review. A new 
management team has been appointed at Maropeng and it is expected that the overall performance of the official visitor centre in the 
COHWHS will improve. The project is currently being managed jointly by Wits and GPG. 

The upgrade of the exhibition at Maropeng as well as the installation of additional infrastructure improvements at Maropeng are 
currently underway, with some aspects of these upgrades having been completed in the reporting period. The completion of the 
construction and upgrades to the learner facility, Hominid House, was completed in the reporting period as was the temporary 
exhibition space. 

Public Participation and Community Benefits 

In order to facilitate the inclusion of communities in the overall management of the site, the Management Authority sponsors twenty 
schools from the surrounding local community to visit the centres of Maropeng and Sterkfontein annually. This is part of the broader 
outreach programme and the visitor centres act as a valuable resource for teacher and learners alike, as the subject of evolution is part 

of the national curriculum. This project has been an ongoing project for a number of years. 

Open public meetings are held annually to inform stakeholders in the World Heritage Site about progress with projects and updates 
regarding the overall management of the site, and are held at different geographic locations within the site to be able to reach as 
many stakeholders as possible. 
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An Arts and Crafts Community Beneficiation project was established in April 2012 involving local community members. The 
programme seeks to empower community individuals within the COHWHS to enter the competitive craft market through a community 
owned and managed secondary cooperative based in the project area. To date one secondary cooperative (retailing and marketing) 
and four primary cooperatives (production) have been established and are currently functional. The primary cooperatives focus on 
production of embroidery, wood-craft, wire-craft, beading, moulding and screen printing. 

The second phase of the project entailed mentorship and training programmes for the established five primaries and one secondary 
cooperative. The established cooperatives were assisted in setting up a stall at the Maropeng visitor centre. Further mentoring and 
training programmes were held for these cooperatives and partnerships in the reporting period. Also in the reporting period, fruitful 
partnerships were established with the Department of Rural Development which provided equipment to the primary cooperatives and 
the Department of Trade and Industry which provided valuable support in terms of training for the cooperatives. 

The potential of the craft sector to create jobs for rural and other underprivileged communities is known and supported by various 
government departments. The creation of cooperatives is a preferred intervention since it is supported by various government 
departments. The beneficiaries received training and mentoring in product development, business and enterprise development, 
marketing and cooperative management, amongst others. 

In addition to the arts and craft initiative, a collaborative project with Wits employing local community members as fossil casters was 
also established. This fossil casting facility is functional and operates from the Sterkfontein Caves site. This project has recruited local 
community members to be trained in fossil casting skills and has created a number of employment opportunities, as well as ensuring 
that scientifically important, high quality casts are available to the scientific community as well as the general public. This is one of the 
flagship projects of the partnership between the Management Authority and Wits. 

The Cradle Trust, while remaining dormant due to the fact that no funds have been generated from the PPP agreement in terms of the 
Concession Contract, continues to be managed at an administrative level. The Trust has disbursed funding to two scientific research 
projects to the value of Rl 00 000 to date. It is envisaged that the Trust will grow and will eventually focus on funding further scientific 
research in the site while at the same time rolling out meaningful community projects, aligned to the mandate of the Management 
Authority in terms of the World Heritage Convention Act as well as the Operational Guidelines for the Implementation of the World 
Heritage Convention. 

In the reporting period, there has been finalisation of the process for the review of the original Master Plan for the site and the 
development of an inclusive economy strategy for the future management of the World Heritage Site. This is being done with Wits 
researchers as part of the partnership with the university. The idea is to create a platform for elevating the COHWHS to achieve 
greater impact for the surrounding communities and all stakeholders, while at the same time profiling the site as a site of significant 
palaeontological research for the scientific world. 

Integrated Environment and Conservation Management (IECM} 

This sub-programme is responsible for the physical conservation management of both natural and cultural resources that reside within 
the proclaimed World Heritage Site. Because the fossils have been preserved as a result of natural processes and are the raison d'etre

for the listing of the site on the World Heritage List, the conservation and protection of the geology and more specifically, the dolomitic 
environment (Karst environment) and associated grasslands is as important as the management of the fossil sites themselves. 

The management and protection of the fossil sites are inextricably linked to the health and management of the biophysical 
environment. This is done in consultation with the Department of Environmental Affairs who is the State Party and signatory to the 
World Heritage Convention. 

To ensure that the site is managed in terms of the prescriptions of UNESCO and the World Heritage Convention Act, measures have 
been taken to have the site properly proclaimed and a proper boundary and buffer demarcated in consultation with the relevant 
authorities. The Environmental Management Framework (EMF) for the site has been approved and signed off by the Minister of 
Environmental Affairs. A thorough process of redefining the core and buffer so that these run along cadastral lines as prescribed by 
both UNESCO and the Department of Environmental Affairs, is almost concluded. Once these new boundaries have been approved at 
national level, the State Party (Department of Environmental Affairs) will request a boundary adjustment at the next appropriate sitting 
of the Convention. 

Management activities in the reporting period included the continued implementation of a land use management plan to control 
undesirable development that may have a negative impact on the site and which could threaten its status as a World Heritage site. 
This unit also ensures that each of the nationally registered fossil sites are managed and excavated in terms of best practice guidelines. 
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Fossil sites are inspected twice a year by the Management Authority and the South African Heritage Resources Agency (SAHRA) and 

recommendations made on the management of each of the respective fossil sites. 

In 2015, there were some significant scientific announcements from excavations in the COHWHS. In March 201 5, the University of 
the Witwatersrand, in collaboration with scientists from Canada and France, announced that new dating techniques had revealed the 
age of the world famous "Little Foot" skeleton (Australopithecus africanus) to be 3.6 7 million years old, and the deposit containing 
the earliest stone tools (known as the Oldowan era) to be 2.18 million years old. The site of Swartkrans, which is in very close 
physical proximity to Sterkfontein, has also recently had its Oldowan deposits dated to 2.19 million years old - which means that the 
development of the ancient tool making industry in Southern Africa is much older than was originally thought. 

In early 2016 the Sterkfontein Research Team announced another discovery of two new hominid fossils from a chamber at Sterkfontein 
that had not been previously excavated. Both the fossils, which have yet to be described and classified, are intriguing as they share a 
mixture of modern and archaic features. Further announcements are expected. 

In 2014, a multiple award winning protective structure was erected over the Malapa palaeoanthropological site in a collaboration 

between the University of the Witwatersrand and the COHWHS MA, in order to protect the exposed hominid fossil bearing deposits 

and to support low levels of tourism. Until this structure was in place, the Malapa Research Team was unable to conduct research at 
the site. In 201 5, the Malapa Research Team was able to initiate in situ excavations of the deposit for the first time since the site was 

discovered in 2008. The protective structure has been instrumental in assisting the Research Team in levering and removing large 
blocks of breccia (fossil bearing rock) which contain the remnants of the fossils from the holotype (the first specimen of a new species) 
of the Australopithecus sediba species, nicknamed "Karabo". This is made possible because the protective structure also includes a 
versatile crane and pulley system. New announcements and discoveries from the site are expected in late 2016 or early 2017. 

The Maia pa fossil site was graded and declared as a Grade 1 National Heritage Site in March 2016 by the South African Heritage 
Resource Agency. This brings the number of declared National Heritage Sites in the COHWHS to 15. This number is expected to 
increase in the years to come. This includes the discovery of two new archaeological sites, both of which have very recently been 
permitted for scientific research and excavation, and the universally significant site of Rising Star. 

The Rising Star site was discovered in 2013 by a group of amateur cavers who were conducting exploratory work on behalf of 
Professor Lee Berger of the University of the Witwatersrand. After an extremely challenging three weeks, initial excavation in some of 
the most difficult and dangerous environments, the Rising Star Research Team recovered over 1 550 hominid fossils - the largest ever 
single sample on the African continent. Astonishingly, this is just a small sample of the number of fossils that the chamber is thought 
to contain. Over a period of two years, a large international team analysed the fossils, and on 10 September 2015, at Maropeng, a 
media event attracting the global press was held. At this event, Professor Lee Berger and Professor John Hawkes from the University 
of Wisconsin-Madison, announced the discovery of the fossilised remains of 15 individuals - ranging in age from neonates, infants, 
sub--adults, adults and the elderly - of a new human ancestor within the same genus as human beings, called Homo naledi. Naledi, 
meaning "Star" in Sotho, was named in honour of the extraordinary chamber where the fossils were found. Of incredible significance 
is the hypothesis of the Research Team that the Homo naledi species were deliberately disposing of their dead in the Rising Star 
chamber - an activity that has long been associated only with human beings. 

After the announcement, Maropeng hosted a six-week exhibition of the Homo naledi fossils which resulted in over SO 000 visitors 
coming to see the fossils. The Homo naledi discovery was a massively celebrated and debated discovery in the global media, and has 
drawn a significant amount of attention to the World Heritage Site. It is further anticipated that another discovery and announcement 
from the Rising Star Research Team will be made in late 2016. 

The sustainable management of the Highveld Grassland habitat is critical for the natural systems and processes to function normally, 
which in turn will protect the important fossils found throughout the site. The implementation of biodiversity management strategies 
thus becomes as important as protecting the site from inappropriate development. The formation of privately owned protected areas is 
becoming an important strategy to counter poor infrastructure development, unscrupulous development and urban creep. 

Water is an important driver of the dolomitic environment and the fossil-forming processes. Management of surface and groundwater 
in the World Heritage Site is crucial for the protection of the sensitive Karst environment. It is through the implementation of a water 
monitoring plan that the Management Authority is able to gauge the severity of the threat posed by Acid Mine Drainage (AMD) and 
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other water pollution threats to the site. A detailed surface and groundwater study was concluded in 2011. Since then, the Council 

for Scientific and Industrial Research ICSIR) has been contracted to implement a water resources monitoring programme that is able to 
track responses in the system over time. The Status Report shows, and the monitoring programme confirms the understanding of the 
dynamics of the water resources responses to external factors like climatic change as well as the ingress of water from the decanting 
mine voids. This study has revealed the hydro vulnerability status of each of the fossil sites. 

The CSIR which runs the monitoring programme, provides two reports annually on the status of the groundwater in the site. In the 
reporting period, the Management Authority completed and submitted a State of Conservation report !SoC) to DEA on the status of 
the impact of Acid Mine Drainage on the World Heritage Site. This report was submitted to the World Heritage Centre in Paris by the 

Department of Environmental Affairs. A second report to the World Heritage Centre is in preparation and due for submission by 1 
December 2016. 

The Working on Fire Programme is implemented in the project area by the Department of Environmental Affairs on behalf of the 
Management Authority. Twenty five people are employed from the local community through this programme. They serve an important 
function in the maintenance of the site. not only through fire prevention and related activities, but also assists in maintaining various 
aspects of the fossil sites as well as other maintenance initiatives throughout the site. 

Land Use Management/National Environmental Management Protected Areas Act 

(NEMPAA) 

The key deliverable of this sub-unit is the overall management of development applications in the World Heritage site. The sub-unit 
undertakes site visits, engages with property owners. reviews development applications and plans and forwards comments and 
information to the Department of Environmental Affairs for decision-making. Compliance and enforcement matters are also being 
addressed and reported on. 

The most important achievement for this sub-unit in the reporting period was the finalisation of the construction of the first phase of 
the Mountain Bike Trail project. This is the first part of a broader strategy for the implementation of a system of mountain bike trails 
in the World Heritage site which lends support to the non-motorised initiatives of the Gauteng Department of Roads and Transport 
IGDRT). 

The GDRT reviewed the approach and recommendations by the project team and officially endorsed the approach and general 
design, and best practice guidelines proposed by the feasibility study. As a result, the detailed design and construction of the first 1 8 
km of dedicated mountain bike trail was undertaken within the road reserve of the provincial roads within the Cradle of Humankind 
World Heritage Site in the 2013/14 financial year. and the finalisation around maintenance of this trail was undertaken in the reporting 
period. Planning and design of a further 1 3 km mountain bike trail section to complete the loop trail was undertaken during the 
2014/15 financial year. The construction of this trail section w711 complete Phase 1 of the trail project and will result in a 31 km single 
direction mountain bike loop trail within the road reserve. The mountain bike trail as well as the existing cycle lanes in the World 
Heritage site are fast making this area the cycling destination of choice in Gauteng. 

Since the completion of the mountain bike trail, at least two properties located adjacent to the mountain bike trail have upgraded 
their hospitality functions to cater increasingly for the needs of the wider cycling community. The close relationship between the trail 
and cycle lanes and supporting services provided by the private sector were identified during the feasibility stage. The upgrade and 
development of cycling specific support services/venues along the trail is testament to the success of the trail system in generating 
economic opportunities. 

The management of the issue surrounding Portion 7 !Farm Rhenosterspruit 41 5 JO) in the project area is currently being addressed by 
all relevant stakeholders. including national and local government structures in dealing with illegal occupation of land that falls within 
the demarcated boundary of the World Heritage site. 

Orientation Centres 

The main deliverable of this unit in the reporting period related to the management of infrastructure related to road maintenance 
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in the project area. This, together with the traffic calming measures project, gateways and additional directional signage procured 

for the site, has contributed to creating a greater sense of place in the World Heritage Site which will also contribute to improved 

navigation in the project area for both residents and visitors alike. 

The strengthening of the relationship with GORT is planned in the new reporting period to address the issue of road maintenance, 

signage and other matters related to the management of the road reserve in the site. The partnership with the GORT is critical in the 

management of the site into the future, as the roads that dissect the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site are provincial roads. A 

Service Level Agreement (SLA) with the GORT will be finalised in the new reporting period. 

4.4 Stakeholder Engagements 

The management of the site is done in partnership with key stakeholders, ranging from fossil site landowners to tertiary institutions like 
the University of the Witwatersrand, the different tiers of government (local, provincial and national), adjacent provinces like Limpopo 

and the North West Province (serially listed with the Makapan Valley site and the Taung Child site, respectively) and a range of other 
important stakeholders and agencies. There has been significant local, national and international engagement in the reporting 

period, with strengthening ties with a variety of these key stakeholders. The South African Heritage Resources Agency is another key 
stakeholder in the management of the site, and in particular the fossil sites. 

A close working relationship with all these stakeholders is critical in the overall management of the World Heritage Ssite. The approach 
of the Management Authority is the management of the site in co-operation with all stakeholders and improving relationships already 
established with critical stakeholders, both within as well as outside of the physical environment of the World Heritage Site. 

4.5 Challenges and Opportunities 

The incorporation of the COHWHS under the Department of Economic Development in the new reporting period has brought about a 
greater stability for the Management Authority to be able to implement its mandate. 

Another focal challenge facing the COHWHS is the management of the site in consultation and collaboration with all stakeholders of 
the Cradle community in line with UNESCO's Operational Guidelines for the Implementation of the World Heritage Convention. It is 

also important to put in place regulations that will assist the Management Authority to better manage development-related activities 
within the World Heritage site and to ensure that benefits flow to communities living in and around the site. 

The forging of stronger ties with the communities and stakeholders, therefore, remains a crucial and ongoing challenge in terms of 
managing the site. Much has been done to date in addressing this and it remains work in progress. The COHWHS is close to two 
major urban conurbations and urban encroachment is a real threat in terms of protection and preservation of the site for future 
generations. This is currently being managed, in consultation with the relevant provincial and national authorities. 

The management of the groundwater in the COHWHS which is a fundamental part of the Karst geology of the World Heritage site, 
can be cited as another major challenge. The threat from Acid Mine Drainage on the fossil sites is largely restricted to those sites in 
the southern area, but mitigation measures to address AMO have resulted in drastic improvement in the quality of the water flowing 

through the system. This is closely and constantly monitored by the Management Authority. A monitoring plan has been implemented 
by the Management Authority as per recommendations from the extensive groundwater study that was undertaken and which has 

been recognised by UNESCO and International Convention on Monuments and Sites (ICOMOS) as best practice. 

The COHWHS is fast being recognised as one of the premier tourism destinations in South Africa and a site that holds immense 
significance for the world, as it talks directly to the story of our ancient human ancestors and remains one of the most prolific 
palaeoanthropological sites in the world. The phenomenal recent discoveries at the Malapa and Rising Star sites are set to change the 
face of palaeoanthropology going forward, with new major announcements of the finds at the Rising Star site expected in the new 
year. 

There is a huge opportunity for the Management Authority to develop the site in line with UNESCO prescriptions and open up the site 

for tourism development that will not only profile the site and its richness, but will directly benefit communities living in and around 
the site, as well as profile the continent as the birthplace of humanity. 

The main focus for the Management Authority in the coming year is the protection and conservation of the elements which constitute 
the Outstanding Universal Value of the site, which is first and foremost, the existing fossil sites and the biophysical environment in 
which the fossil sites exist. 
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Another critical partner in the management of the site is the local municipality of Mogale City. There has been collaboration with the 

municipality on various aspects of the management of the site, including collaboration on the arts and craft project. Closer working 
ties need to be strengthened going forward, particularly with regard to working closely with the municipality in the best interests of 
the World Heritage site, the country and the world. 

The issue of Acid Mine Drainage and monitoring of the quality of the ground and surface water is another high priority for the 

Management Authority, as is the meticulous management of development pressure in and around the site. 

The operational management and ongoing maintenance of the first phase of the Mountain Bike Trail Project ( 18 km) will likely add to 

the already existing profile of the site as a non-motorised and cycling destination of choice in Gauteng. 

The MA will also continue to support the cooperatives that have been established as part of the Craft Beneficiation Project and will 

continue to sponsor school visits to the Maropeng and Sterkfontein visitor centres. The MA will also look at the future expansion of 
these existing projects. 

A fossil casting project has also been established at Sterkfontein, employing local community members and it is envisaged that this will 

become a self-sustaining and developing project, managed in collaboration with Wits. The Cradle Trust will also receive attention and 

will continue to support community projects and further scientific research. 

The substantial upgrades at Maropeng and Sterkfontein in terms of the exhibition and external environment, will likely draw greater 

footfall, not only to the visitor centres, but to the greater catchment area of the World Heritage Site. The research that will be 

undertaken with Wits in the new reporting period will map a process for the future management of this iconic World Heritage Site. 

The OUV of the site cannot be managed in isolation from the stakeholders and communities directly impacted on, by the site. 
Continued and greater impetus will be given to forging even closer ties and building on the relationships already established with all 
stakeholders. and in particular with fossil site landowners and surrounding communities, working together with them in managing the 
site for the benefit of all. 

4.6 MARKETING AND BRAND MANAGEMENT 

Introduction 

The COHWHS is undoubtedly one of South Africas leading World Heritage sites as it offers visitors from Africa and across the globe a 
unique and common area of significance, in that it proves through scientific evidence that all modern humans share a single common 
ancestor that can be traced back to the African continent. The management, promotion and garnering of broader stakeholder support 

for this Brand is therefore critical. During the period of reporting work was focussed on achieveing some of these major goals and 
encouraging visitation to the COWHS as a place of pilgrimage for the world. 

Cradle of Humankind Marketing and Brand Management 

The implementation of the updated COHWHS Brand Strategy that was developed in 2014, was a key area of focus with the 
conclusion of the identified Strategy "Quick Wins· which included areas such re-positioning of the COHWHS as a mini visitor 
destination, development of a destination website, visitor app, brand ambassador training and others. 

Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The Brand and Marketing Management Unit operated during the period under review as part of a broader vision which supported the 
following broader objectives, including the COHWHS, to: 

• increase demand for the COHWHS visitor brand offering domestically and internationally through the creation and 
presentation of a unique tourism brand 

• ilncrease demand for association and use of the COHWHS brand amongst key stakeholders 
• roll out of the a refreshed visual and inherent brand identity across all brand contact points, ranging from markets to a level 

of operation such as branding, websites, social media and others 
• manage the brand reputation of the COHWHS which could be affected by challenges such as crime, Acid Mine Drainage 

and stakeholder challenges. 



r Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Tourism Projects Annual Report 2015/2016 

The above-mentioned goals have been achieved through a number of key functional areas of work, including areas relating to 

the visual brand identity creation such as a Brand Manual development and implementation, photography, design, collateral 

development, sub-brands development. campaign concept development and support, destination branding and brand management 

aimed at consistent management of messaging. 

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Brand Reputation Management Project 

This project relates to the ongoing and sporadic crime that has taken place in the Muldersdrift area, an area bordering the COHWHS, 

over a number of years, which not only affects tourism visitation to the area, but also creates a negative perception of the COHWHS 

due to its close location or position within the tourism catchment area for the COHWHS. The goal has been to dispel these perceptions 

and to position Muldersdrift and its surrounds as a safe family and business tourism destination. 

Through the convening of a monthly stakeholder forum with representation from key role-players, including the South African Police, 

the Community Policing Forum, private business owners, non-government organisations, security companies, crime in the area has 

drastically declined, with tourism businesses and footfall into the area stable and increasing. The work of the South African Police 

Service (SAPS) supported the Forum and stakeholders have seen Muldersdrift winning a national prize as the second best Police Station 

in the country. 

The objective of these initiatives is to manage crime and grow tourism, to create jobs and also to also attract small and large business 
development in the area. This work includes the funding and implementation of the Provincial Rural Safety Plan by the Department 

of Community Safety. This is realized by engagement of partnerships with our sister government departments to ensure that this is 
achieved, and remains a key target for the coming year. 

Website Development 

A new destination website was created to profile the COHWHS core and extended brand identities. The website will continue to 

profile the broader area of the COHWHS and its diverse tourism and other offerings. 

The Cradle App 

The development of a destination App was another 

achievement in the reporting period and included the 

conceptualisation, design and development of a new 
App. This App has also positioned Maropeng as the 

official visitor centre in the COHWHS, aiming to dispel 
the brand confusion that exists between Maropeng 

being the official visitor centre and the broader COHWHS 

area. Beyond the core brand offerings of Maropeng and 

Sterkfontein Caves as the visitor centres in the COHWHS, 
the App has listed over 1 00 products of diverse 
experiences across the broader area and extended 
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Local Tourism Association 

The establishment and operation of the COHWHS Local Tourism Association (LTA) was also implemented in the reporting period. The 

setting up of a representative voluntary Board to guide the strategic operation, registration of the LTA as a Not for Profit Company 

(NPC), stakeholder engagement, a membership drive and other work to ensure that the operation was established. The key milestone 

of the LTA was the official launch which took place on 31 March 2016 with great stakeholder attendance, support and an increase in 

membership and interest. 

This is a critical project in terms of the collective marketing of the broader area which will not only see an increase in visitor footfall 

to Maropeng and Sterkfontein, but also an increase in marketing of the area, as done by licensed brand users affiliated to the Local 

Tourism Association. 

Collateral Development 

Brochures, banners and other collateral as guided by the new Brand Strategy were developed to assist in consistently marketing 
the COHWHS on all brand touch-points. These included partnerships with Magaliesberg Maps which profiles the COHWHS and 

surrounding areas, in outdoor branding materials and promotional items for key stakeholders. 

4.8 Exhibitions 

Durban Tourism lndaba 2015 

The COHWHS participated at the annual Tourism lndaba exhibiting in the SA Tourism Business Lounges for pre-scheduled and targeted 

one-on-one meetings with international hosted trade and buyers. These meetings worked very effectively, and after the lndaba three 
buyers were hosted for site visits at Maropeng and Sterkfontein Caves. Other partnerships saw the packaging and listing of the 

COHWHS on tour operator websites and brochures. 

Gauteng Outdoor Expo 

The COHWHS participated at the Outdoor Expo which was hosted in Midrand under the Gauteng Tourism banner and took place 

immediately after the Tourism lndaba. This exhibition attracted a number of products from outdoor and adventure offerings from the 

COHWHS including the Visitor Centres, Maropeng and the Sterkfontein Caves. 

Getaway Consumer Show 

The Gauteng Getaway Show where the COHWHS exhibited under the Gauteng stand, once again attracted hordes of visitors from 

the province and beyond. The COHWHS remains a premier exhibitor at this leading annual consumer show, where thousands of 

destination enquiries were dealt with over the three-day show. 

China Road Shows 

The COHWHS attended the China Road Shows under the Gauteng banner, where the destination was well represented. The Unique 

Selling Points (USPs) of the province focussed on the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and formed part of the sales pitch and 
promotions. 

There were over 100 agents in Shenzhen who knew of South Africa, but had not been here. In Shanahai over 1 00 anents h;irl ;m 
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to South Africa, but were looking for authentic experiences in Johannesburg and the province. Over 400 copies of material were 

produced and translated into Chinese/Mandarin as a pre-requisite by the SAT Beijing country office. A lure brochure was produced that 
had itineraries of things to do in the COHWHS and Dinokeng. 

One of the highlights of the road shows was the awarding of a luxurious holiday for five days and six nights in Gauteng to Mr. Wei Li 
from t.:avion International Travel Services Co.Ltd who won the prize at the Beijing Reception Dinner. 

Meetings Africa 

Africa's premier Business Tourism Show one again saw the COHWHS exhibiting under the Gauteng Tourism pavilion, which showcased 

leading business tourism and related offerings across the Gauteng region. As required for meetings. conferences and EXPOS, the 

COHWHS remains one of Gauteng·s leading meetings, incentives, conferences and events (MICE) destinations, with numerous 

enquiries and site visits made for business tourism activity at the official visitor centre, Maropeng, and other flagship venues in the area. 

World Travel Market 

This international platform remains crucial as the United Kingdom continues to perform amongst our leading international source 
markets for tourism in the country and the province. Working alongside South African Tourism's Country Managers and relevant 

marketing and communications personnel, the COHWHS was well profiled as Gauteng'.s only World Heritage site which boasts a global 

brand appeal, thus a strong pull for visitors into the province. Working with SA Tourism remains a priority for increased tourism footfall 
growth into Gauteng, using the COHWHS as an international destination of choice to achieve this. 

International Tourism Bourse (1TB) 

The project was profiled under the Gauteng Tourism destination and under the SA Tourism Country Pavilion in Germany. Both 

locations proved very useful with the COHWHS as a UNESCO-listed World Heritage site being a huge attraction of interest, working 
well alongside other provinces on the Country Pavilion. Germany hosts the 1TB in Berlin. This exhibition is similar to the United 
Kingdoms World Travel Market. Germany is one of the South Africa's top three source markets, so it is a critical platform to profile 

leading destinations such as the COHWHS. 

4.9 Events and Activations 

Homo naledi Media Launch and Exhibition 

The international media launch of arguably the Cradle of Humankind'.s biggest fossil discovery ever, hosted by the Deputy President of 

the country, not only attracted hordes of media, high-level stakeholder attendance and support, but also placed the COHWHS on the 
international map once again. The exhibition of the original fossil for almost two months also saw the temporary secondment of staff 

to assist Maropeng in dealing with the high visitor numbers during this period, with the visitor centre attracting record visitor numbers 
exceeding 45 000 over the period that the fossils were on display. 

A number of high-profiled hosting in the form of visits, meetings or mini events also took place, including visits by the Minister of 
Tourism and his Tourism CEOs and MECs, the Premier of Gauteng and African Ambassadors, the High Commissioner for the UK, 
Chinese Deputy Ambassador and Deputy Minister of Economic Affairs and other high-profile visits, which also attracted media 

attention. 

One key milestone achievement from the government's perspective in terms of the Homo naledi announcement is a general increase 

in visitor numbers to Maropeng and the COHWHS. 

Heads of State Visits 
I 

- -
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This area of work remains an important project for the COHWHS and seeks to embalm the footprints of visiting Heads of State and 
Nobel Laureates. The engagement of the Department of International Relations and Co-operation (DIRCO) with this important project 
is critical to its success and therefore during the period under review the bulk of work focussed on engaging stakeholders such as 
DIRCO, the Presidency and others. 

COHWHS Cycle Race 

The Cradle Cycle Festival was once again hosted at Maropeng with a huge increase in participants and media interest. This event 
continues to position the COHWHS as Gauteng's premier cycling destination. 

Challenges and Opportunities 

The following are key marketing opportunities: 

• a strong destination brand with global appeal makes it one of South Africa's foremost visitor experiences and a desirable
brand for brand association by potential sub-brands, which will further build the brands reputation and market penetration

• the launch of a tourism association which is expected to create increased coordination of marketing, events, partnerships
and promotion of the COHWHS

• ongoing significant fossil discoveries, which will continue to profile the area to global audiences, which requiring increased
leverage through partnerships such as Brand S.A., South African Tourism and others

The following are key marketing challenges: 

• crime, a huge challenge within the rural space of the West Rand, especially Muldersdrift, has huge potential to create
negative perceptions on safety and what the COHWHS offers its leisure and business visitors

• destination development challenges such as navigational signage, illegal signage and related issues complicates the visitor
experience of the area

Outlook for 201 6/1 7 

The Management Authority will continue to focus on its primary mandate, as per the World Heritage Convention Act, and our 
commitment as a country to protect the OUV of the site, to sustainably manage the environment on which these fossil sites occur, 
offer interpretation and presentation of the site and involve local communities in the management of the site, ensuring that benefits 
flow to communities living in close proximity to the site. Essentially this entails protecting the cultural heritage that must be transmitted 
to future generations. 

There will be an increased focus on the natural resource management of the site, including close monitoring of development 
management. The development of tourism and the encouragement of greater footfall to the visitor centres and the site will also 
receive focussed attention. 

The announcement of new finds from the site, and in particular, from the newly excavated Rising Star site in the coming months is 
likely to focus world attention once again on this site of global palaeontological significance. 

The management of the site as a serially-listed site, with its sister sites of Taung and Makapan Valley in the North West and Limpopo 
Provinces and in consultation with the Department of Environmental Affairs is currently underway, with a Joint Management 
Committee in place and an Integrated Management Plan being finalised. The Management Authority also continues to be represented 
on the South African World Heritage Convention Committee meetings and has also played an instrumental role in the setting up of the 
first South African World Heritage Site Managers Forum - a forum where site managers from all the World Heritage Sites in South Africa 
meet and interact on areas of mutual interest in the management of the sites. 

The management, maintenance and expansion of the mountain bike trail in the project area will increase its popular reputation as the 
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cycling destination of choice in Gauteng, while ensuring that the site continues to grow its tourism potential. Attention will be given to 
Tthe engagement with property owners and service providers will receive attention (restaurants, secure parking, bike maintenance and 
restrooms) in the near future around the establishment of a standard of service to the cycling community. The upgrades at the official 
visitor centre, Maropeng, will ensure that visitors experience diversity when visiting the site and will ensure repeat visitation. 

The Management Authority will continue to manage the site in close consultation with all stakeholders. As a central focus of the 
management of the site, the Management Authority will ensure that steps are taken to initiate further research, education, training, 
awareness raising and capacity building around the World Heritage Site as well as liaise with, and be sensitive to the needs of 
communities living in or near World Heritage Sites. 

The COHWHS will continue to be managed in terms of the prescripts of the World Heritage Convention Act and the prescripts as laid 

down by UNESCO for the optimal management of World Heritage Sites the world over. and for current and future generations. It is 

our country's obligation to preserve, conserve, present and interpret this iconic site for South Africa and the world. 
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Report of the Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on the Cradle of 

Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entities 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1. I have Audited the Financial Statements of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity set out on pages

39 to 61, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial performance,
statement of changes in net assests, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget with actual amounts for

the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Accounting Officer's responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and for such internal
control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in

accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements,
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the trading entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Cradle of
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as at 31 March 201 6 and its financial performance and cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of matter 

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter:

Restatement of corresponding figures 

8. As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2015 have been restated as a
result of an error discovered during 31 March 201 6 in the financial statements of the trading entity for the year ended 31
March 2015.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the general notice issued in 
terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined
objectives for selected strategic goals presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with legislation and
internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not
to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these
matters.

Predetermined objectives 

1 0. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information 
' • • • ·-· - ·- 1-: __ .._:. ·-- ______ ,. _ _.. ;_ 4-1.-.- ---··-' ....,,....,.f.,..,........, ....... ,,.,.., .,.,...,...,...,.t ,...f tho tr-::.,-fi nn ontih1 ff"\r tho \/O�r 
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0 Strategic objective 1: The protection and conservation of the outstanding universal value of the COH WHS on 

page 61 

11 . I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 

with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned strategic goals. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 

specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's Framework for managing programme 
performance information (FMPPI). 

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete. 

13. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the 
selected strategic objective. 

Additional matter 

14. Although I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for 
the selected strategic objective, I draw attention to the following matter: 

Achievement of planned targets 

15. Refer to the annual performance report on page 61 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation 

16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the trading entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding 

financial matters, financial management and other related matters. I did not identify any material instances of non
compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA. 

Internal control 

1 7. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the performance report and compliance with 

legislation. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control. 

_ .... ·,. - .... L _ .. '7» 
A U D I TOR - GE N E R AL 

SOUT H AFRIC A 

Auditing to build public confidence 

Johannesburg 

31 July 2016 
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Report of the Accounting Officers 

GENERAL REVIEW OF THE CRADLE OF HUMUNl<IND WORLD HERITAGE SITE AND 

DINOl<ENG PROJECTS 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects continue to execute important components of the Gauteng 

Tourism Development Strategy (GTDS). Work which was executed in the past year indicates a commitment to productive partnerships, 
economic growth and community development. This Annual Report once again provides strong evidence of sustained service delivery, 

performance against targets and the tackling of important challenges during the 2015/16 financial year. 

During the year under review, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site has continued to grow into its role as an iconic world

class tourism destination. Critical success factors have included the competitive marketing, management and appropriate development 
of the greater tourism landscape. The Interpretation Centre Complex, comprising of Maropeng and Sterkfontein, has continued to 

provide a focal point of this superb and endlessly fascinating destination, and improvements on Hominin House have been completed, 

whilst further developments to refresh the exhibitions and enhance the tourism offerings of the Interpretation Centre Complex are 

continuing, beyond the year under review. 

The continued support by government for schools visiting Maropeng has underlined the objective of providing greater awareness of 
our universal African origins. That support is beginning to bear fruit, as manifested in the transformation and diversification of those 
involved in the subject Palaeoanthropology. To this end, there has been a marked and continuous increase of women, and particularly 

black women, in this challenging field, which a few decades ago seemed to have been the exclusive domain of white males. Scientists 

have shown a hitherto unknown level of co-operation, and the year has been notable for the announcement of Homo na/edias 

a new species of hominin. South Africa in general (and Gauteng in particular) has made a huge contribution in understanding of 

universal human origins. The vast number of fossil fragments from the Rising Star cave has affirmed South Africa's position as the origin 

centre of our human ancestors, in that about half of the world's known fragments of human ancestors and their relatives come from 

here. 

The dedicated staff of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site has continued to ensure that development is controlled in 
accordance and in compliance with applicable and relevant legislation. The very same staff has also supported the continuous 

development of leisure activities, which enhances the destination, particularly through the development of mountain bike trails. With 

the established popularity of the site amongst the road cyclists, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site is now almost certainly 
the most popular cycling destination in the whole of South Africa, based on sheer numbers. 

For its part, the Dinokeng Project has continued to make very positive progress, with the star attraction remaining the Dinokeng Big 

Five Game Reserve. These charismatic large mammals have popular appeal, but we should always be mindful that they form part of a 
complex and ever changing ecosystem; therein lies our responsibility to conserve, preserve and interpret their continued existence and 
interaction with humanity. The self-drive route development which we have has been reported on, in the past, is now complete and 
operational. It is gaining in popularity as the ecotourism community becomes increasingly aware of this exceptionally accessible option 
for game viewing, birding and other nature-related activities. The self-drive area has become the home to Bblue Ccranes and Gauteng's 

only known breeding pair of Martial Eagles. 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve is only one component of a bigger project, which includes the Cullinan Hub and Roodeplaat Nature 
Reserve. The three combine to constitute the Gauteng City Region's intervention strategy for the resuscitation through tourism of the 
area, which has been economically depressed. This determination followed a thorough assessment, and as a result of these projects, 
the area is beginning to show signs of massive development and growth in the economic and tourism spaces. Admittedly, more must 
still be done, more so in terms of employment and inclusion of local communities within the tourism mainstream. 

Through its activities, the Dinokeng Project ensures that it encourages and/or promotes initiatives with direct and indirect social 
impact, as well as those that result in the conservation of the outstanding universal value of the site through environmental 

interventions. As in previous years, firebreaks on the game reserve perimeter were handled successfully through the active involvement 

and co-operation of the Working on Fire group. 

The completed P25 (Kl 4) road in its first full year of operation has enormously improved access to Cullinan, as has the completed 
phase of the signage plan. 

During the year under review, tourism has continued to hold its own against other sectors in the economy, and has continued to 
grow in both real and comparative terms. This is most meaningful if tourism continues to create work opportunities and precipitates 

skills transfer in tourism and the cluster of industries that benefit from tourism. 

Once again, the staff of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects have demonstrated devotion to 
excellence, originality and creativity and have deported themselves with due diligence. I believe this Annual Report will serve as 

a glowing testimonial to those who continue to serve these esteemed projects that continue to grow in international recognition, 

significance and well deserved acclaim. 

On behalf of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) I would like to convey my total appreciation and support to all the 

stakeholders for their partnership, hard work and commitment to the development of these outstanding destinations which have 
continued to occupy a dominant place in the tourism landscape and grow to become examples of real and lasting excellence. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE ENTITIES 

Stable 1 Analysis per TRADING ENTITY 

Name of Trading Entity 2015/2016 2014/2015 

Final Actual Under Expenditure Final Actual Under Expenditure 

Appropriation 
Expenditure 

Appropriation 
Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Dinokeng Project 53 570 38 329 15 241 37 736 33 612 4 027 

Total 53 570 38 329 15 241 37 736 33 612 4 027 

Cradle of Humankind 71 377 38 969 32 408 72 628 58 165 5 015 

World Heritage Site 

Total 71 377 38 969 32 408 72 628 58 165 5 015 

Furthermore, under spending within the entities was as follows: 

Dinokeng Projects 

Dinokeng spent 71 .5% of the adjusted appropriation amount of R53 5 70 million with actual expenditure at R38 329 million, with an 
under spend of R l  5 241 million (28,5%). 

The under spend is attributed to the reviewed and revised Annual Performance Plan that was aligned to the new mandate that 
focuses on the destination management, emanating from the separation from the Gauteng Tourism Authority. 

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

Cradle of Humankind Dinokeng spent 54.6% of the adjusted appropriation amount of R71 377 million with actual expenditure at 

R38 969 million, with an under spend of R32 408 million (45,4%). 

The under spend is attributed to the reviewed and revised Annual Performance Plan that was aligned to the new mandate that 
focuses on the destination management, emanating from the separation from the Gauteng Tourism Authority. 

During the 2015/16 financial year, 1 00% of creditors were processed and paid within 14 days and 100% within 30 days, an 
unprecedented achievement two years in succession. This ensured that SMME's were enabled to operate continuously. 

Events after the reporting date 

The entities have no significant event after the reporting date that needs to be reported. 

Other 

The Dinokeng and Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site prepares its Annual Financial Statements on the Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practise (GRAP) on an accrual basis which is populated on a specific template that is provided by National Treasury. 

The 2015/16 financial year was the first year in which the two entities reported under the Department of Economic Development after 
migrating from the Gauteng Tourism Authority so that they focus on the supply side of tourism, 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation 

I would hereby like to extend my gratitude to the MEC for his political leadership during the year under review. To the senior 
management of the Entities and their authorities, thank you for your contribution in implementing the mandate of the Department. 
To our oversight bodies, including the Cluster O 1 Audit Committee, Gauteng Audit Services and the Portfolio Committee, thank you for 
assisting us to improve our internal control environment, compliance and governance. 

Conclusion 

The Accounting Officer has taken due cognisance of all relevant legislations, prescripts of the World Heritage Convention Act and 
those issued by UNESCO and have exercised an informed judgement on the management of the entities.With careful consideration 
on the prudent utilisation of financial resources allocated to meet the strategic objectives of the entities and the Gauteng Provincial 
Government, outcome measures were implemented that minimised inherent organisational risks and the prevention of incidences 
of fraud and corruption. The entities managed to maintain functional governance structures that provided the organisational policy 
directive and management oversight responsibility. 

Approval and sign off 

The Annual Financial Statements as set out on pages 39 to 61 were approved by the Accounting Officer. 

Mr M;tkh1.1kh11 M:::1mru 1r11 
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GAUTENG PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (GPG) 

Report of the Audit Committee - Cluster O 1 

Dinokeng and The Cradle of Humankind 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Audit Committee and Attendance 

The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least two times per 
annum as per provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of Reference (GPG Audit 
Committee Charter), five meetings were held during the current year, i .e. three meetings to consider the Quarterly Performance 
Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial Statements and the Auditor
General of South Africa's (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports. 

Non-Executive 

Name of Member Number of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker 04 

Mr. Mandia Ncube 04 

Ms. Masaccha Mbonambi 05 

Executive Members 

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit Committee: 

Compulsory Attendees Number of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Phindile Mbanjwa (Accounting Officer) 04 

Mr. Kgomotso Mojapelo (Chief Financial Officer) 05 

Mr. Oupa Tshule (Chief Risk Officer) 05 

The Audit Committee noted that the Accounting Officer attended four (04) out of five (OS) scheduled Audit Committee meetings. 
However, a letter of apology was tendered with duly authorized representative attending on behalf of the Accounting Officer. 
Therefore, the Audit Committee is satisfied that the Entities adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter in relation 
to ensuring that there is proper representation for the Accounting Officer. 

The Committee hereby also, confirms that Members of the Audit Committee met with Senior Management of the Entities, Internal 
Audit and the Auditor-General collectively to address risks and challenges facing the Entities. A number of in-committee meetings were 
held to address control weaknesses and deviations within the Entities. 

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38( 1 l(a) of the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee 
rh,.rt<>r h::,< rPrn ,t;itPd its affairs in comoliance with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 
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The effectiveness of internal control and Information and Communication Technology (ICTI Governance 

In line with the PFMA and the recommendations from King Ill Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 
the Audit Committee and Management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by 
means of the risk management process. as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls 
and processes. The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the Entities remains at significantly high 
levels and wishes to compliment the Management for its efforts. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed progress with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the ICT Framework issued by the 
Department of Public Service and Administration and wishes to encourage the controlling Department of Economic Development 
to ensure that these Entities are incorporated into its plans going forward. There were no significant findings identified and the ICT 
Governance controls were adequately maintained during the year under review. 

Internal Audit 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has adequate information 
systems coverage, and a good balance across the different categories of audits. i.e. risk-based, mandatory, performance, computer and 
follow-up audits. 

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the Executive Management. the AGSA and 
the Internal Audit Function. which has strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives within the Entities. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued by Internal Audit for the Entities 
during the year under review. The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal 
level as expected by the Audit Committee, the shortage in human resources and skills should be addressed. 

Risk Management 

Progress on the risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the 
actual management of risk is receiving attention. although there are areas that still require improvement. Management should take full 
responsibility for the entire Enterprise Risi< Management process and continue to support the Chief Risk Officer to even further enhance 
the performance of the Entities. 

Forensic Investigations 

The PFMA and its regulations clearly stipulate that matters such as incurring unauthorised, irregular as well as fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure, possible abuse of SCM system (including fraud and improper conduct) and allegations of financial misconduct should be 
investigated. 

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared and submitted 
by the Accounting Officer of the Entities during the year under review and confirms that the reports were in compliance with the 
statutory reporting framework. 

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee has: 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the AGSA and 
the Accounting Officer;

• Reviewed the Audit Report of the AGSA;
• Reviewed the AGSA's Management Report and Management's response thereto; 
• Reviewed the Entities· compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit.

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA's conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements, and is of the opinion that 
the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA. 

The Audit Committee wishes to commend the management of these Entities on having no material misstatements in its annual 
financial statements. 

One-on-One Meeting with the Accounting Officer 

The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Officer for the Entities to address unresolved issues. 

One-on-One Meetings with the Executive Authority 

The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for the Entities to apprise the MEC on the performance of the Entities. 
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Auditor-General of South Africa 

The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

Date: 31 July 2016 



Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 201 6 

Note(s) 

Receivables from exchange transactions 3 

Cash and cash equivalents 4 

Property, plant and equipment 5 

Intangible assets 6 

• 

Trade and other payables 7 

Provisions 8 

Accumulated surplus 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'000 

1,318 

41,454 

42,772 

1,523 

52 

1,575 

44,347 

1,007 

533 

1,540 

42,807 

42,807 

2015 

Restated* 

R ·ooo 

75 

11,980 

12,055 

1,964 

58 

2,022 

14,077 

3,330 

614 

3,944 

3,944 

10,133 

10,133 

Statement of Financial Performance as at 31 March 201 6 

·Revenue ·. ' '·, , '.'· ·. � -. .;·· • 

Other income 

Revenue irom rion-e.xctiange trnnsactions'. - .. · 

Government grants & subsidies 

Total revenue 

Employee related costs 

Transfer payments - Other 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Lease rentals on operating lease 

General Expenses 

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 

Note(s) 

9 

10 

11 

12 

2016 

R'000 

16 

71,627 

71,643 

(13,787) 

(6,451) 

(585) 

(18,146) 

(38,969) 

2015 

Restated* 

R'000 

12 

72,616 

72,628 

(15,780) 

(21,731) 

(837) 

(315) 

(19,499) 

158,162) 

,�, 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets as at 31 March 201 6 

Opening balance as previously reported 

Adjustments 

Prior year adjustments 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year 

Pe5t,1t,,,1 • U.1t,1rn ,. ,11 Apr 11 01, /0 S 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year 

Total changes 

Cash Flow Statement as at 31 March 201 6 

Grants 

Other receipts 

Employee costs 

Suppliers 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Net rr,cr,•,1sr�/(t112,:iease) 111 cash .-1nd cash equiv 1 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

13 

5 

4 

Accumulated 

surplus 

R '000 

(4,102) 

(228) 

(4,330) 

14,463 

10,133 

32,674 

32,674 

42,807 

2016 

R '000 

71,627 

16 

71,643 

(13,787) 

(28,245) 

(42,032) 

29,611 

(137) 

29,474 

11,980 

41,454 

Total net assets 

R '000 

(4,102) 

(228) 

(4,330) 

14,463 

10,133 

32,674 

32,674 

42,807 

2015 

Restated* 

R '000 

72,616 

12 

72,628 

(15,780) 

(45,134) 

(60,914) 

11,714 

11,714 

266 

11,980 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Budget on Cash Basis 

Statement of Financial 

Other income 

Personnel 

Transfer payments - Other 

Depreciation and amortisation 

General Expenses 

Approved 
budget 

R'000 

85,777 

85,777 

(19,660) 

(6,500) 

(59,617) 

(85,777) 

Adjustments Final 
Budget 

R '000 R'000 

(14,600) 71,177 

(14,600) 71,177 

2,829 (16,831) 

(6,500) 

11,771 (47,846) 

14,600 (71,177) 

Actual Difference Reference 
amounts on between 
comparable final 

basis 
budget and 

actual 

R'000 R '000 

16 16 19.1 

71,627 450 19.2 

71,643 466 

(13,787) 3,044 19.3 

(6,451) 49 19.4 

(585) (585) 19.5 

(18,145) 29,701 19.6 

(38,968) 32,209 

32,675 32,675 

32,675 32,675 
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Accounting Policies as at 31 March 201 6 

1 . Presentation of Financial Statements 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting 
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 9111 l of the Public Finance Management Act 
(Act 1 of 1999). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1 . 1 Going concern assumption 

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going concern 
for at least the next 12 months. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's 
fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(sl given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in 
the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as 
a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, plant 
and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 
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Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual 

value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The useful lives of items of 

property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item Depreciation method Average useful life 
Furniture and fixtures Straight line 5-1 0 years 

Office Furniture Straight line 5-10 years 

Computer equipment Straight line 4-7 years 

Leasehold improvements Straight line l0years 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If the 

expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations 

differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the 

item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities, are 

transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised 
as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of 

• whether the entity intends to do so; or
• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are transferable or

separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in the form 

of a contract. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to 

the entity; and 
• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and supportable 

assumptions that represent management's best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset. 

Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured at its 
fair value as at that date. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. An 
intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 

• it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
• there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
• there is an ability to use or sell it.
• it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential.
• there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.
• the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to 
the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these 
intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For 
all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the asset 
may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as intangible 

assets. 

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

Item 

Intangible assets 

1.4 Financial instruments 

Useful life 

7-20 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of 
another entity. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured 
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of 
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an 
obligation. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. 

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of financial 

position. 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 

• Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign

exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of 
• a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the 'underlying').
• It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of 

contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors. 
• It is settled at a future date. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of 
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 

instrument or. when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When 

calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument 

(for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and 

points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP 

on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash 

flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However. in those rare cases when it is 

not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life 

of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual 

term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 

arm's length transaction. 

A financial asset is: 

• cash;
• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to: 

0 receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
0 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable 

to the entity. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 

it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 

instrument. 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 
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• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity. 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

interest rates. 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that 

are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loans payable are financial 

liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 

prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 

individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A residual 

interest includes contributions from owners. which may be shown as: 

• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part

of an entity's net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets

of an entity. 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial 
liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the 
financial instrument. 

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or 
determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 

• 

• 

1.5 

derivatives; 
combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 
instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 
0 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 
0 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 
0 non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at fair 

value at initial recognition; and 
financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 
instruments at cost. 

Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an 
asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the 
loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated 

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return 

that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is 
.... ; .. i.-.. ........ 
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(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity.

Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow: 

1.6 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 1 2 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 

leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 

rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 

entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs .  

The expected cost of  surplus sharing and bonus payments i s  recognised as  an expense when there i s  a legal or  constructive obligation 

to make such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where 

the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method. Actuarial valuations are 

conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. 

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is 

performed at an earlier date. 

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a 
straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten percent of 

the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets (the corridor), that portion is 
recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses 
within the corridor are not recognised. 

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably committed to 
curtailment or settlement. 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 

obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the 

asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the 

net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted 

for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of plan assets. 

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in 

future contributions to the plan. 

1.7 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 

• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and 
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 

reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 

required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. 
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Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the 
provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is 
recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries! under the contract is recognised and measured as 
a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 

• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
0 the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
0 the principal locations affected; 
0 the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 

terminated; 
0 the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
0 when the plan will be implemented; and 

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it.

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 

• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
• not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, 
there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently 
measured at the higher of: 

• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note . 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 
instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. 

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an 
outflow of resources may be probable are: 

• financial difficulty of the debtor; 
• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 
• breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of 

the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment! that impact on the 

ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is 
considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. W here a fee is charged 
and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

• the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; 
• and 
• the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with

the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
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1.8 Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow 

of cash. 

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, 
if both the following criteria are met: 

• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or building 
maintenance services); and

• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity- therefore salary 

commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded. 

1 . 9 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 

increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arm's length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Rendering of Service 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with the 
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome of a transaction 
can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

• the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
• it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 
• the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
• the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably. 

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specified time frame, revenue is recognised on a straight line 
basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of completion. When a 
specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the significant act is executed. 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to 
the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable. 

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of completion is 
determined by . 

Interest, royalties and dividends 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised 
when: 

•

• 

It is probable that the economic benefit.; or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and
The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably . 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements. 

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity's right to receive payment has been established. 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed. 

1.10 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the 
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asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 

Control of an asset arise when the entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can exclude or 
otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit . 

Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange. 

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whether or not they pay taxes. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either 
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity 
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not 
specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred 
asset by entities external to the reporting entity. 

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available to 
others. 

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation. Taxes are 
economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or 

regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the 
law. 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes. 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a 
liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction. 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity. When, as 
a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the 

amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a 
liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the 

obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is 

subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is 
recognised as revenue. 

1.11 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.12 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

(a) this Act; or 
lb) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(cl any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 7611) to 7614) of the PFMA requires the 
following (effective from 1 April 2008): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/ 
or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an 
instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited 
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note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National 
Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular 
expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must 
thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting 
authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 
expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in 
law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note 
to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

1.13 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.14 Related parties 

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities 
within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged 
with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions. 

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity. 

Only transactions with related parties not at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 

1.15 Events after reporting date 

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date 
when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and 
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date). 

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once the 
event occurred. 

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be made 

in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 

basis of the financial statements. 

2. New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective

The entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the entity's 
accounting periods beginning on or after April O 1, 2016 or later periods: 

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public sector entity. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and measurement of 
liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and disclosure, transitional 
provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

GRAPl 08: Statutory Receivables 

The obiective of this Standard is: to prescribe accountinq requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
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of statutory receivables. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions, recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional provisions, as 
well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Significant 

Residual Interest in an Asset 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the granter where it has entered into a service concession 
arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual interest in a service 
concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease. This Interpretation of the 
Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or arrangements. 

A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement between a granter and an operator in which the operator uses 
the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the granter for a specified period of time. The operator is 
compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through payments, or through receiving 
a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the operator is given access to another revenue
generating asset of the granter for its use. 

Before the granter can recognise a service concession asset in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 
Arrangements: Granter, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP need to be met. In 
some service concession arrangements, the granter only controls the residual interest in the service concession asset at the end of the 
arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 
Arrangements: Granter. 

A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP. on the recognition of the performance obligation and the right 
to receive a significant interest in a service concession asset. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards 
of GRAP 

The objective of this Directive is to permit an entity to change its measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards 
of GRAP. The change is based on the principles in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors. This Directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

In applying paragraph 13(b) of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, this 
Directive allows an entity, that has initially adopted the fair value model for investment property or the revaluation model for property, 
plant and equipment, intangible assets or heritage assets, to change its accounting policy on a once-off basis to the cost model when 
the entity elects to change its accounting policy following the initial adoption of these Standards of GRAP. The once-off change will be 
allowed when the entity made an inappropriate accounting policy choice on the initial adoption of the Standards of GRAP. 

Subsequent to the application of this Directive, an entity will be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods subject to it 
meeting the requirements in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after April 0 1, 2016. 

The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

GRAP 20: Related parties 

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity's financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw 
attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related parties 
and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to as the 
reporting entity) shall apply this standard in: 

• 

• 

• 

identifying related party relationships and transactions; 
identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties; 
identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and 
determining the disclosures to be made about those items . 
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This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, in the 
consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to individual financial statements. 

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related parties may 
affect users' assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed services, 
including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures that the reporting entity is 
transparent about its dealings with related parties. 

The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise 
significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. As a minimum, 
the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity: 

2. 

• 

New standards and interpretations (continued) 

A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the reporting entity if that person: 
0 has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 
0 has significant influence over the reporting entity; 
0 is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity. 
An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: 
0 the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

and fellow controlled entity is related to the others); 
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of 
an economic entity of which the other entity is a member); 
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 
one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; 
the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity related to 
the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity; 
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and 
a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that 
entity (or its controlling entity). 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting 
entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of: 

• Close member of the family of a person;
• Management;
• Related parties;
• Remuneration; and
• Significant influence

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of: 

• Control;
• Related party transactions; and
• Remuneration of management

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after April O 1, 2016. 

The entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the entity's operations. 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to have an impact on the results of the entity, but may result in more disclosure than is 

currently provided in the financial statements. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

3. Receivables from exchange transactions

Trade debtors 

Inter entity Dinokeng 

Staff debtors 

Travel and subsistence advances 

Inter entity GDED 

4. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 

Bank balances 

5. Property. plant and equipment 

Budget on Cash Basis 2016 

Cost/ Accumulated 

Note(sl 

Carrying 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

Cost/ 

2016 

R'OOO 

(11 

860 

11 

21 

427 

1,318 

3 

41,451 

41,454 

Accumulated 

2015 

R '000 

43 

23 

9 

75 

3 

11,977 

11,980 

2015 

Carrying 
Valuation depreciation value Valuation depreciation value 

Office furniture 

Computer equipment 

Leasehold improvements 
----------

R,:co11c111,:niori of property, pc<nt and eqliir r 1e 

Office furniture 

Computer equipment 

Leasehold improvements 

Office furniture 

Computer equipment 

Leasehold improvements 

751 

1,659 

1,865 

4,275 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

(6391 

(1,2941 

(821) 

(Z,7541 

113 

366 

1,044 

1,523 

Opening balance Additions 

207 

489 

1,268 

1,964 

Opening balance Disposals 

302 

836 

1,492 

2,630 

137 

137 

(31 

(31 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

751 (5441 

1,522 (1,0331 

1,865 (5971 

4,138 (2, 1741 

Depreciation 

(941 

(2601 

(2241 

(5781 

Depreciation Total 

(951 

(3441 

(2241 

(6631 

207 

489 

1,268 

1,964 

Total 

113 

366 

1,044 

1,523 

207 

489 

1,268 

1,964 
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6. Intangible assets

2016 

Cost/ 

Valuation 
Accumulated Carrying value 

Software licences 526 

Software licences 

l,econc1h<1tion of 1nta11q1lJle assets - 20 r 

Software licences 

7. Trade and other payables

Trade payables 

SARS- paye 

Accrued leave pay 

depreciation 

and 

accumulated 

impairment 

1474) 52 

Notels) 

Cost/ 

Valuation 

527 

Opening balance 

58 

Opening balance 

231 
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2016 

R ·ooo

Accumulated 

depreciation 

and 

accumulated 

impairment 

1469) 

Amortisation 

(6) 

Amortisation 

1173) 

345 

3 

659 

1,007 

2015 

R'OOO 

2015 

Carrying value 

58 

Total 

52 

Total 

58 

2,440 

54 

836 

3,330 

Opening 

Balance 

386 

228 

Additions Utilised during the Reversed during Total 

Performance bonus 

Capped leave 

Reco1,cilratfon of 

Performance bonus 

Capped leave 

• 

614 

• 

Revenue from exchange transaction 

Operating grants 

Transfer payment received 

Government grant 

.. . ' . . 

year 

295 1215) 

10 

305 (215) 

Opening Additions 

Balance 

351 264 

219 9 

570 273 

the year 

1171) 

(171) 

Utilised during the 

71,377 

250 

71,627 

year 

1229) 

1229) 

16 

295 

238 

533 

Total 

386 

228 

614 

12 

62,616 

10,000 

72,616 
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Notels) 

I l . Employee related costs 

Acting allowances 

Basic 

Burgaining council - company contributions 

Capped leave provision charge 

Compensation -injury on duty 

Housing benefits and allowances 

Leave gratuity 

Medical aid - company contributions 

Non pensionable allowances 

Pension - company contributions 

Performance bonus 

13th Cheques 

12. General exf)enses 

Advertising 

Assets expensed 

Assets expensed under R5 000 

Auditors remuneration 

Bank charges 

Cleaning 

Consulting and professional fees 

Electricity 

Entertainment 

Postage and courier 

Printing and stationery 

Rental 

Security services 

Subscriptions and membership fees 

Telephone and fax 

Training 

Transport and freight 

Travel - local 

Travel - overseas 

Venue expenses 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'000 

16 

9,610 

2 

11 

144 

389 

1,419 

1,336 

125 

735 

13,787 

2,186 

615 

26 

205 

10,331 

305 

17 

2 

191 

2,957 

207 

302 

181 

432 

182 

5 

18,146 

2015 

R'000 

312 

11,324 

10 

133 

53 

384 

1,332 

1,201 

305 

726 

15,781 

5,552 

20 

538 

21 

189 

7,398 

374 

188 

3 

18 

2,852 

190 

51 

307 

336 

831 

438 

39 

155 

19,500 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

l 3, Cash generatea 

Surplus Adjustments for: 

J':" '" ' 
fro.m 9p�ra,tion.s _ _ · , 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Loss on sale of assets and liabilities 

Movements in provisions 

c1,,m�1es 111 wurkr11q c,1p1 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade and other payables 

14. Prior period errors

Note(s) 

2016 

R '000 

32,674 

585 

(81) 

(l.244) 

(2,323) 

29,611 

2015 

R '000 

14,463 

837 

3 

35 

(3,624) 

11,714 

During the current period adjustment were processed for the previous financial period. Capped leave was previously recognised as 
a contingent liability. In accordance with GRAP 19. capped leave meets the definition of a provision. 

The correction of the error results in the adjustments as follows: 

Provision 

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit 

Members 

Controlling entity 

Public Private Partnership 

Fellow Controlled entities 

Refer to members· report note 

Gauteng Department of Economic Development 

Maropeng a Africa Leisure (PTY) Ltd 

Dinokeng 

(228) 

(228) 

During the year the entity realised that all related parties transactions were disclosed including those that are at arms lenghth, and 
this was not consistent with GRAP 20. The impact of this correction on the Annual Financial Staements are nil. 

General Expenses 2,043 8,528 

Already contracted for but not provided for 2,043 

There were no capital commitments during the 2015/16 financial year 
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embers' emoluments 

Basic salary Employer Employer 
contribution contribution 

pension medical 

Tlebere K 432 56 8 

Sathekge M 368 48 

Chettair S 322 42 13 

Pillay M 279 36 3 

Layton N 269 36 3 

AmodA 321 42 17 

1,991 260 44 

Basic salary Employer Employer 
contribution contribution 

pension medical 

D Robertson 501 

Asmal Y 406 

Tlebere K 447 58 9 

Sathekge M 354 46 

Chettair S 300 39 12 

Pillay M 268 35 3 

Layton N 269 35 3 

AmodA 304 39 17 

Mampuru M 198 26 

3,047 278 44 

Note(s) 

Allowances 

85 

198 

160 

123 

123 

79 

768 

Allowances 

87 

190 

149 

118 

118 

49 

61 

772 
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2016 

R '000 

Bonus & 
notch increase 

payable 

39 

24 

23 

21 

107 

Bonus & 
notch increase 

payable 

37 

23 

53 

25 

5 

143 

2015 

R '000 

Total 

620 

614 

537 

465 

454 

480 

3,170 

Total 

501 

406 

638 

590 

500 

447 

478 

434 

290 

4,284 

* During the 2014/15 financial year an employee holding a position of Deputy Director was incorrectly disclosed as part of the
members emoluments, the individual was paid an amount of R290,000 for the 2014/15 financial year. 

The remuneration costs in respect of senior management are equally split between the Dinokeng Trading Entity and Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site Trading Entity as they service both entities in meeting their strategic and operational objectives. 

The entity'.s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through 
an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

At March 31, 2016 

Trade and other payables 

Leave accrual 

Provision 

Not later than 
1 month 

38 

later than one Later than Over 5 years 
month and not three months 
later than three but not later 

months than a year 

307 

659 

533 



r Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

2016 2015 

Note(s) R'000 R'000 

At March 31, 2015 Not later than later than one Later than Over 5 years 
1 month month and not three months 

later than three but not later 

months than a year 

208 416 1,870 

70 140 626 

614 

Credit risk 

The entity's financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty 
will default on its obligations in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not charge a fee for the 
service that it provided. The balance of receivable relates to inter trading entity balance between the entity and Cradle of Human Kind 
World Heritage Site. Both these entities are managed by the same management. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

The entity is exposed to a number of guarantees for the overdraft facilities of economic entities and for guarantees issued in favour of 

the creditors of A (Pty) Ltd. Refer to note for additional details. 

Market risk 

This is the risk that financial instruments fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. The entity is not exposed to 
this risk as it does not have any financial instruments of which its value might be influenced by changes in market prices. The entity 
financial instruments are only receivables and payables between the entity and its related parties. 

Post-tax surplus for the year would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classified as at fair value through 
surplus or deficit. Other components of equity would increase/decrease as a result of gains or losses on equity securities classified a 
available-for-sale. 

19. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

Note 19. 1 Other income: The entity does not budget for other income. 

Note 19.2 Budget: The difference is as a result of R250,000 received from National Department of Tourism for signage progect in the 
Cradle of Human Kind. 

Note 19 ,3 Personnel expenditure: The underspend is as a result of vacant posts not filled in the current year. 

Note 19.4 Transfers and subsidies: The underspend is due to minimal transfers to Maropeng for the operational losses. Note 19.5 
Depreciation: The entity does not budget for depreciation. 

Note 19.6 General expenses: The underspend is as a result of planned projects that were not executed in the current year. 

20. Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes 
that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent 
obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 
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Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Other financial liabilities 

Provision 

Trade and other receivables 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other payables 

Provision 

22. Comparative figures

Note(sl 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'000 

At fair value 

1,318 

41,454 

42,772 

At fair value 

1,007 

533 

1,540 

At fair value 

75 

11,980 

12,055 

At fair value 

3,330 

614 

3,944 

2015 

R'000 

Total 

1,318 

41,454 

42,772 

Total 

1,007 

533 

1,540 

Total 

75 

11,980 

12,055 

Total 

3,330 

614 

3,944 

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. The effects of the 
reclassification are as follows: 

Decrease in administrative expenses 

Decrease in operating expenses 

Increase in depreciation and amortisation 

Increase in lease rentals on operating lease 

Increase in loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 

Increase in general expenses 

(7,705) 

(12,949) 

837 

315 

3 

19,499 
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23. Events after the reporting date

Note(s) 
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2016 

R ·ooo 

2015 

R '000 

After the reporting date a new Chief Executive Officer, Mr Makhukhu Mampuru, was appointed on the O 1 April 201 6. The entity is not 
aware of any other events that occured after reporting date that will have an impact on the financial statements. 

24. Change in estimate

During the year the following changes were made to the estimation employed in the accounting for the assets 

Changes in the depreciation/ armortisation resulting from 
reassement of useful lives. The following categories are affected 

Computer Equipment 

Intangible assets 

25. Public-Private Partnership

Value derived 

from using the 

original estimates 

R'000 

338 

164 

174 

Value derived 

from using the 

from amended 

R'000 

21 

16 

5 

Value imapct of 

change in the 

estimate 

R'000 

317 

148 

169 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site Project initiated and managed the Public Private Partnership contract with Maropeng 
f>{ Africa Leisure (Pty) for the management and operation of the Maropeng and Sterkfontein Interpretation Centres. Early in 
201 O the key shareholder Stefanutti Stocks Holdings Limited exited from the concession which necessitated the Gauteng Provincial 
Government (GPG) through the Cradle of Humankind W orld Heritage Site Project to take over the management of the Maropeng 
Board together with our concessor partner Wits University. 

The facility is still functioning with GPG and Wits University jointly managing the facility through the Board of Directors of MAL. The 
process has remained opened in terms of finding a new shareholder. 
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Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects 

Performance against targets for 201 5/16 financial year 

PROGRAMME 2: CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE 

STRATEGIC GOAL 1 : A management system that ensures the conservation of the fossil 

sites within the COHWHS 

... . . ..

Protect, preserve 
and interpret the 

OUV of the site 

. . . 

Number of fossil 
sites that meet 
the requirements 

of the prescribed 
legislation (NHRA, 
WHCA, and 

1 NEMPAA)

26 fossil site 26 Target achieved None 

inspections per 
annum 

( 1 3 fossil sites x 

2 inspections per 
year) 

_j 

STRATEGIC GOAL 2: The protection and conservation of the outstanding universal value 

of the COHWHS 

7 

8 

.. . . . -

Protect, preserve 
and interpret the 
OUV of the site 

Ensure tangible 
community 
beneficiation and 
growth in the 
visitor economy of 
the COHWHS 

. . .
. . . 

Number of 34 boreholes 
boreholes monitored 
monitored as part 

( 1 7 boreholes 
of water resources 
monitoring 

monitored in 
the Cradle of 

programme 
Humankind World 
Heritage Site twice 
annually) 

Number 2 000 
of learners 
benefitting from 
sponsored school 
visits to the official 
visitor centres in 
the COHWHS 

34 

2 000 

Target achieved None 

Target achieved None 

_L __ i
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5. DINOKENG

5.1 Introduction: Dinokeng Programme 

The purpose of Dinokeng Programme Entity is to implement the Dinokeng Master Plan. Envisaged in the Master Plan, is the 
development of three tourism hubs and five tourism nodes in the Dinokeng area, in order to create a tourism destination in a gradual 
and phased approach. The Dinokeng area extends from Roodeplaat in the south, to Hammanskraal in the north, to Moloto and 
Cullinan in the East. The tourism hubs are based in the Dinokeng area and the Dinokeng Game Reserve is the primary attraction. The 
development of the Roodeplaat Dam and Cullinan areas are secondary tourism hubs. 

5.2 Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The strategic objective for Dinokeng is aligned to the Township Economic Revitalisation (TER) strategy of the province anchored by the 
Transformation, Modernisation and Re-industrialisation programme with its ten pillars. The strategy of the Dinokeng trading entity is to 
invest in common tourism infrastructure and tourism facilities in order to attract private sector investment in tourism business activities 
in the project area. The rationale for the development of the project is to contribute to economic growth and job creation in the 
impoverished north-east region of Gauteng Province, which is part of the northern corridor. The key strategic objectives are to: 

• development and management of the Dinokeng Game Reserve
• development and support SMMEs to promote inclusive economic participation of previously disadvantaged individuals and 

groups 
• establish new and continue support of existing co-operatives 
• develop the Roodeplaat Tourism Hub 
• destination marketing to increase domestic and international leisure and business tourism to the destination 

5.3 Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review 

The expansion of the self-drive routes by an additional 34 km to the existing 66 km will provide an opportunity to increase day 
visitation to the reserve, as well as a massive contribution to the economic viability of the reserve. In the long run it will reduce the 
dependency on state funding for the reserve. The acceleration of creating an inclusive economy in the Dinokeng Project is another key 
milestone with the partnership with the Gauteng Enterprise Propeller which will create 8 cooperatives, support 20 SMMEs and provide 
over 200 job opportunities. 

Dinokeng Game Reserve 

In the past financial year. the Dinokeng Game Reserve alone continued to provide more than 500 permanent jobs. The reserve will 
continue to work with land owners and other partners to create more jobs, sustain the economic contribution of the reserve to the 
local economy as well as make its contribution to the reduction in poverty in the area. 
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The Dinokeng Game Reserve Unit, working together with the Department of Environmental Affairs through a signed Service Level 

Agreement, continued to clear 124ha of alien vegetation in the Dinokeng area, through the Working on Fire Programme. The project 

has created 51 temporary jobs in the DGR as part of the Expanded Public Works Programme, with more focus on employment of 
youth, women and people with disabilities. 

During this period under review, the Dinokeng Project established an additional 34 kilometers of the DGR self-drive routes as part 
of Phase 2 of the project, totaling 100 kilometers of self-drive routes. Figures since the official opening of the first phase of the DGR 
self-drive route in December 2014 shows that the visitor numbers to the DGR are continuing on the increase. It is anticipated that the 
self-drive route will become the main revenue stream for the game reserve in the long run. 

The DGR Unit continued to ensure implementation of the Environmental Management Plan for compliance, including undertaking 
natural resource management and ecological management. This will ensure that the DGR becomes and remains a competitive eco
tourism destination product that has shown to have a multiplier effect on job creation. To date, more than 500 jobs have been created 

indirectly, through lodges and other products inside the game reserve and more than 100 direct jobs have been created directly, 

through the Management Association and the Working on Fire project. The DGR maintains an open natural landscape for ecological 
continuity and provides for rehabilitation operations to reinstate its former ecosystem health. Part of this piece of work includes 

ecological field assessments, bio-monitoring such as veld condition assessments, game counts for treasury requirements and ecological 

carrying capacity assessments, and river health bio-monitoring in order to ensure sustainable delivery of ecosystem services through 
delivery of clean water. clean air, productive soils and natural resource harvesting like wood and game products for the curio industry. 

Tourism Hubs 

The main focus of the Tourism Hub Unit is to develop Roodeplaat and the town of Cullinan as tourism hubs. In Roodeplaat, the plans 
for 2015/16 were the upgrade of the picnic sites and ablution blocks in the Roodeplaat Dam, the development of an Environmental 
Management Plan for the Roodeplaat Dam and the development of a concept document for an anti-chemical and biological warfare 
museum, dubbed "Project Coast". 

The Unit went through a consultative process which involved specialists in the field that suggested an Environmental Management 

Plan IEMP) for Roodeplaat Dam, which will guide the development of Roodeplaat as a tourism Hub. The development of an EMP 
was planned for the 2015/16 financial year but this target was not achieved due to the fact that legislation !National Environment 

Management Act No. 107 of 1998) governing EMPs require that it should be conducted at least over two seasons. The EMP was then 
postponed to the 2016/17 financial year. 
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Negotiations with the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development for the use of state land at Roodeplaat Dam by the 
Dinokeng Project and any infrastructure and property management services were finalised. A Service Level Agreement between 
GDED and GDID was drafted, which defines the agreement on the use of state land and the role each department will play on the 
development of Roodeplaat as a tourism hub. 

The land assembly work for Roodeplaat Development continued in 2015/16 with the GDID. A Service Level Agreement between 
the GDED and GDID for the use of state land at the Roodeplaat Dam by the Dinokeng Project and any infrastructure and property 
management services was finalised. The agreement is critical to ensure that plans identified for the development of Roodeplaat are 
implemented. 

For the town of Cullinan, the continuation of the discussions to finalise the agreement on land transfer and property use in Cullinan 
was prioritised. The development of Cullinan as a tourism hub is guided by the Cullinan Tourism Model. The vision for the town 
is to promote Cullinan as Gauteng's most preferred, all year, short break destination, attracting discerning visitors to experience a 
combination of the rustic nature of the town as well as various offerings and products in the town. The heritage of the town is the 
bedrock of the tourism experience and ambiance of the town, drawing its inspiration from the Edwardian feel as well as the diamond 
mining activities of the town. 

The tourism model developed in 2012 identified destination development, precinct development, destination marketing, people 
development and destination management as key to developing the town of Cullinan as a tourism hub. All tourism developments in 
Cullinan done by the Dinokeng Project will be guided by this report. 

During the year under review, a logo for the town of Cullinan was developed and adopted by all stakeholders. This was done in 
consultation with tourism stakeholders and strategic partners, the City of Tshwane and the Cullinan Chamber of Commerce. It was 
also supported by the Gauteng Tourism Authority. The logo for the town identifies its unique features as well as containing the 
internationally recognised tagline ·The Great Star of Africa"'. As an expression of this logo, the Dinokeng Project created visual markers 
for the town. Ten selected schools were given new boards with their names alongside the visible new logo. This also included 
branding the twenty dustbins along Oak Street, so that a culture of cleanliness is maintained whilst keeping the town pristine. 

Public Participation and Community Projects 

The Public Participation and Community Benefits Unit (PPCBI prioritises creation of access to tourism opportunities for the previously 
marginalised within the Dinokeng area. It therefore uses the principles of the Township Economic RevitilationRevitalisation anchored by 
the TMR programme (and its 10 pillars. 

To achieve this, PPCB created the following key areas: 
• training and skills development within the broader tourism value chain 
• enterprise opportunities, growth and sustainability
• creation of new opportunities within the tourism sector in the area
• creating platforms for dialoguing between the Dinokeng Project and stakeholders in the area 

The following were key achievements within the period under review. Through a partnership with the Ga-Rankuwa Hotel School 
(GHSI, more than 300 learners from the Dinokeng area were placed to be trained in one or more of the following courses: 

• Assistant Chef 
• Hospitality Services
• Basic Baking
• Food and Beverages 

The learners were recruited from the local communities using ward structures as well as the Community Development Workers (CDW) 
from the Gauteng Department of Social Development (GDSD). Others were recruited from the lodges within the Dinokeng area with 
the purpose of either giving them formal skills or raising their skills level. These learners were recruited through the local associations, 
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e.g. the Dinokeng Game Reserve Management Association

for the Dinokeng Game Reserve, the Roodeplaat Tourism

Association for Roodeplaat Hub and the Cullinan Chamber

of Commerce for the town of Cullinan. Additional support
was also received from the Tshwane Tourism Association.

The partnership with GHS has proven to be successful and
is intended to be extended for the financial year 201 6/ 1 7.

Enterprise development, growth and sustainability is 
fundamental within the tourism sector. The Dinokeng 

area is no exception. For the period under review, the 

PPCB unit has been working with various SMMEs to gain 

an in-depth understanding of the trading conditions of 

SMMEs, particularly Black-owned enterprises. To this end, 

referrals to institutions such as the Gauteng Enterprise 

Propeller and the Gauteng Tourism Authority were made 

so that additional support to these SMMEs can be given. 

Evidence shows that there has been no attrition of SMMEs 
in the area for the period under review and growth and 
sustainability of these SMMEs are showing positive signs for 
the financial year 2016/17. 

Creating new opportunities is crucial for enabling access 

to tourism and economic opportunities in the Dinokeng 
area. The assistance the PPCB unit has been giving to the 

Dinokeng Game Reserve around establishing a concession 

on the picnic site and the self-drive route exclusively for 
creating sector access, has been important. The picnic site 
will create opportunities for SMMEs to participate in the 
economy of the game reserve by creating an enterprise 
opportunity for an SMME to manage the picnic site as well 
as participate in the greater economic activity of the game 
reserve. 

The partnership with the Gauteng Enterprise Propeller, 
which will also straddle the financial year 2016/17, is 

further evidence of creating new opportunities. Six SMMEs 
were appointed jointly by the Dinokeng Project through 

the PPCB unit to serve as service providers to assist in the 
establishment, development and growth of SMMEs and 
cooperatives in the Dinokeng area. Each of these service 
providers will train approximately 20 beneficiaries in both 
Hammanskraal and Cullinan and form one cooperative 
for each of the areas. These cooperatives are in the areas 
of fashion crafts Uewellery and beading), decorative 

crafts (wood carving and wireworks), textile crafts (textile 

fashion, sewing, embroidery and silk screening) and 
functional crafts (pottery, mosaic, moulding and ceramics). 
Eight cooperatives will be established, supported and 
developed through this project. 

In addition, one service provider was appointed to provide 

support for the development, growth and sustainability of 
1 0 existing SMMEs in the tourism sector in the area. These 

existing SMMEs include four Black owned lodges, a health 
and wellness enterprise and tour operators. Another 

service provider was appointed to provide support for the 

establishment, development, growth and sustainability of 
1 0 new SMMEs that cut across various tourism enterprise 

activities. In total, six service providers have been 
supported who in turn will create eight cooperatives and 
20 SMMEs, supporting over 200 beneficiaries and job 

opportunities. This is the value of the partnership with the 
Gauteng Enterprise Propeller. 

Stakeholder management and creation of platforms for 
dialoguing between the Dinokeng Project and tourism 

stakeholders in Dinokeng is vital for cohesion. The 

PPCB unit managed to convene and lead four tourism 
stakeholder meetings called the Tourism Information 
Meetings (TIMS), two in Cullinan, and one each in 
l?Anri.0nl::1::1t :::.nri the:i ninr\ln::inri �:::u·-n,0 r.>,0(',0n1,0 Th.cu:,o 
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platforms are vital for the project to provide progress reports to stakeholders and for stakeholders to provide the necessary support 

to the project. The project needs to take cognisance of the operating environment and ensure that it creates projects that will indeed 

support the development and growth of the tourism sector in the Dinokeng area. This is over and above the regular stakeholder 

engagement programme of the project. 

Creating awareness about the Dinokeng Project and the work it is doing is pivotal not only because it makes the locals "ambassadors" 

of the project, but it also enables the local communities to gain a sense of ownership of the project. To this end, and in partnership 

with the Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development and the Gauteng Department of Education, about 600 learners 

from eight schools were hosted at the Roodeplaat Nature Reserve to be trained in nature conservation as well as to appreciate 

the beauty of nature and play a role in conserving the natural environment. This is in addition to the more than 500 learners who 

attended the Science Week at Kwalata Game Ranch in the Dinokeng Game Reserve. 

5.4 Stakeholder Engagements 

The Dinokeng Project continued to engage with strategic and effected stakeholders as part of its Stakeholder Engagement Strategy 

and Plan. The main focus of this piece of work is to share and discuss plans with various stakeholders for alignment of plans and 

resources, with the aim of working together for the attainment of the same objectives in a streamlined and coordinated manner. 

The focus on the TER guided by the principles of the TMR and the ten pillars, seeks to ensure that priority is given to create access 

to tourism opportunities, knowledge and resources for players who were previously marginalised. The main thrust is to ensure that 

the adjacent communities to the three hubs become active beneficiaries, stakeholders and players in the development, growth and 

sustainability of the hubs. 

The Tourism Information Meetings are essential platforms for the project to engage with stakeholders. These platforms allow the 
project to report on progress made as well as canvass opinions of stal<eholders so that there is better synergy between the deliverables 

of the project and private initiatives. This is indeed the very reason for the existence of the project, "to invest in a common tourism 

infrastructure in order to attract private sector investment". 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve and the developments in Roodeplaat and Cullinan cover a wide spectrum of stakeholders. In the reserve, 
land owners are one of the stakeholders. However, the main stakeholders are the local communities which we intend to support in 

order for them to benefit from the game reserve. For the period under review, there were new entrants to the reserve who bought 

land in order to invest in tourism businesses. The consultations with the local ward councillors and the ward committees continue to 

be one of the avenues for our engagement with stakeholders. 

In Cullinan and Roodeplaat, in addition to working with the local ward councillors and their teams, the project also works with the 

Cullinan Chamber of Commerce and the Roodeplaat Tourism Association. 

5.5 Challenges and Opportunities 

The Expansion Sub-committee, comprising of members participating and serving on a voluntary basis, continued to do its work on 

the plans to expand the DGR to 40 000ha. An expansion plan has been developed and the Sub-committee has identified a number 

of potential pieces of land for incorporation into the DGR. Negotiations are still heavily dependent on the willingness of potential land 

owners to incorporate their pieces of land. The finalisation of the share model still remains a challenge. 

The delays in the finalisation of the land claims continue to be a challenge as well. Engagements with the Regional Land Claims 

Commission (RLCCJ and the Gauteng Department of Agriculture and Rural Development continued to ensure finalisation of the 

application for Protected Areas Status for the DGR. The RLCC is still facing human capacity constraints. Failure to conclude and declare 
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the DGR as a nature reserve have huge negative implications on the project, as it presents possibilities of changes in land use in the 

area. 

The establishment of the community is another challenging area for this project. The local political climate and infighting within the 

area has made it difficult to establish a trust with various factions positioning themselves as the leaders of the community. The project 
has been put in abeyance until after the 2016 local government elections. 

Patterns of land ownership in the DGR are slowly changing, with Black people assuming land ownership. However. efforts to increase 
the percentage of ownership needs to be prioritised. 

The finalisation of the land assembly work is on going. The Dinokeng Project has continued to engage with the Cullinan Diamond 
Mine for the finalisation of the land and property exchange in Cullinan, where the state wants to exchange its land parcels and 
properties which the mine wants to use for mining purposes, and in exchange, assume ownership of the land parcels and properties 
owned by the mine but not needed for mining purposes, which the state, through the Dinokeng Project can use for promotion of 

tourism in the area. The delay in finalising the exchange has a negative impact on the implementation of the projects planned for 
the development of the Cullinan Hub such as the Cullinan Outdoor Mining Museum and the Bungee Jump. The same challenges of 
finalising the land and properties transfer to Roodeplaat are affecting plans to develop the Roodeplaat Hub. Constant engagements 

have been held with the National Department of Public Works and the Gauteng Department of Infrastructure Development to 
expedite this. 

Opportunities 

The Township Revitalisation Programme presents opportunities to support local, small businesses from adjacent communities. Efforts 
to ensure that these businesses become registered in the Gauteng Provincial Government Database of Suppliers will be increased. The 
organisation aims to procure all of its goods and services that are available from small local businesses, as part of its aims to support 
and promote SMMEs in the area. Furthermore, the Dinokeng Project is encouraging the DGR and all products and land owners in the 
area to support and promote local, small businesses from the adjacent communities. In addition township tourism in and around the 
Dinokeng area has the potential to develop in the years to come as the destination gains popularity. 

The expansion of DGR presents opportunities to transform the racial land and business ownership patterns in the area. Scientific 
studies have shown that as the DGR expands, the project would break even and become economically viable and also become a 

sustainable project. This is very important in the sense that the more the DGR expands, the more job opportunities will be created. 

5.6 Marketing and Brand Management 

Introduction 

Marketing and implementation of related functions of the Dinokeng destination goes beyond the advertising of individual tourism 

products. The organisation's approach is to market the destination as a total experience, meeting a multitude of needs and desires 

through the exploration of the themes of Nature, Culture and History, as presented by the three major tourism hubs of Roodeplaat, 
Cullinan and the Dinokeng Game Reserve. 

Unit Strategic Goals and Objectives 

The Unit's strategic goals and objectives in the period under review were to: 

• to increase destination brand awareness that will create a need amongst key stakeholder groupings to use and consume 
the Dinokeng brand as part of their marketing 
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management
• use communication mediums and other marketing platforms to profile Dinokeng at trade shows, exhibitions and other

events
• work towards implementation of the Dinokeng Local Tourism Association, a largely private sector driven marketing

organisation, especially as far as stakeholder engagement is concerned 

Key Milestones and Activities in the Period under Review 

Outdoor Eco Adventure and Travel Expo 

The Outdoor Eco Adventure and Travel Expo was particularly effective for the local tourism businesses in Dinokeng from the three 
hubs, which attended and were able to sell their products directly to consumer markets. The Expo is an annual and national consumer 
show for all outdoor-product suppliers as well as travel and tourism-related marketers. In terms of visitor patronage, the show 
attracts a high quality audience in terms of their demographics, especially income, most having a passion for adventure, travel and 
the outdoors. Getaway ShowThe Getaway Show is another annual national consumer show focussing on both indoor and outdoor 
product suppliers. Under the Gauteng Tourism banner exhibition, space was allocated for Dinokeng covering its three major hubs. 
The show offers the Dinokeng Project an opportunity to market new and existing products and services directly to the relevant 
consumers. As part of an integrated Marketing Plan, the Getaway Show supports strategy objectives of increasing visitor volumes, 
visitor spend and economic impact for the destinations, by developing awareness and increased demand and visitor enquiries. 

5.7 Exhibitions 

Tourism lndaba 201 5 

Dinokeng successfully exhibited at the lndaba 201 5, Africa's premier tourism trade show under the provincial tourism banner. lndaba 
is one of the largest tourism marketing events on the African calendar and one of the top five 'must visit' events of its kind on the 
global calendar, especially for global tourism trade operators. It showcases the widest variety of sSouthern Africa's best tourism 
products, and attracts international visitors and media from across the world. Dinokeng was provided with a Business Lounge where 
pre-scheduled meetings took place with international hosted buyers, which not only offered an opportunity to increase international 
trade awareness of the destination but also an opportunity to create contacts for future business. 

Meetings Africa 2016 

South Africa's biggest business tourism show which aims to promote meetings, incentives, conferences and events, once again 
offered the Dinokeng destination an opportunity for product owners within the three hubs to sell the destination which is very huge 
on specific business tourism offerings, such as conferencing and incentives. At this exhibition, meetings were held with targeted 
international and local hosted buyers who showed great interest in the leisure and business tourism offerings of Dinokeng. All three 
Dinokeng hubs exhibited under the Gauteng destination banner, representing all products within their relative hubs. 

Science Unlimited Expo 

As much as this Expo may be a small event in terms of its awareness and targeted base, 
this educational expo offers Dinokeng great opportunities to build brand ambassadorship 
amongst schools and their learners in the surrounding areas. This was the main objective 
for participating in the last Expo, with distributed collateral targeting kids to build positive 
public relations amongst this audience, the supporting media such as DSTV and others 
invited to the event. This boosted the profiling of the Game Reserve as part of the broader 
Dinokeng offering. 

Vakantiebeurs - Netherlands 

As funded by the National Department of Tourism, we further supported the participation 
of Cullinan at this international Road Show which takes place annually in the Netherlands. 
Known for producing the world's largest raw blue diamond The Star of Africa, Cullinan was 
very well received by the Dutch market not only because of the aforesaid Unique Selling 
Proposition (USP) but also due to the fact that the area or town is primarily Afrikaans
speaking which is a language very close to Dutch and easily understood. This meant 
that great brand resonance was achieved by the Cullinan offering with the Dutch market 
focusing on tourism travel and hospitality trade. We provided further support with the 
urgent development collateral including brochures, website content and banners for 
promotion at the show and beyond. 

Cullinan Brand Development 

As guided by the Cullinan Tourism Model Implementation Plan specifically under the 
-. ............ -� ...... -. ... 1, ....... : .... .- -. ............ o ............. � ...... .......................... , ............... ...................... . , .. ;,,......., -.u ....... : ............. � ,-, ,11; ............. ...... ,. 
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developed. Through a process of ongoing stakeholder engagements, the Cullinan brand was eventually developed and adopted as 

a tourism brand for the town, owned and managed by the Dinokeng Trading Entity. This project included deliverables of a Brand, 

accompanying Cl manual, website look and feel, etc. This work was critical as it laid the foundation for the development !look, feel 
and visual identity) of other critical minor destination infrastructure-related deliverables, such as Gateways, Signage, etc. 

Domestic December Campaign 

Domestic Marketing is a critical target output for continued product sustainability. As part of the December Tourism Campaign, 

Gauteng Tourism Authority, which was mandated with the marketing, profiling and promotion of Dinokeng, developed a summer 

campaign that promoted Dinokeng as a major signature offering or experience. Due to budget constraints, the campaign did not 

achieve the desired traction. Dinokeng was profiled in terms of print and digital media, which should have supported the December

January holiday footfall which the destination attracted. 

Stakeholder Engagements 

As briefly mentioned under strategic objectives for the period under reporting, the larger areas of stakeholder engagement work was 

on the setting up of a Dinokeng Local Tourism Association. This was done across the three Dinokeng hubs of Roodeplaat, Cullinan 

and the Game Reserve, which has seen the mobilisation of tourism associations and forums within the hubs, especially in Roodeplaat. 
Where possible, a number of marketing engagements to map forward areas of collaboration such as during Tourism Information 
Meetings, were also held. 

Challenges and Opportunities 

• the success of the Dinokeng destination is dependent on ongoing stakeholder engagement marketing collaboration in

Dinokeng, which was compromised by the lack of a dedicated budget
• continued changes in the organizational framework of the project in relation to GTA has compromised financial control

and accountability during the period under review, with the dissolution of a proposed merger occurring without effective
dissolution of budgetary control 

• the lack of an exit strategy from the project is problematic. Government cannot continue to subsidize operational losses of 

components of the project, such as the DGR, indefinitely
• the absence of an updated Marketing and Brand Strategy and allocated budget dedicated to drive the aforesaid strategies,

impedes the Marketing of Dinokeng
• Dinokeng provides a unique offering which has great appeal amongst local visitors, but has not been optimally marketed

due to structural, organizational and budgetary challenges.
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OUTLOOK for 2016/17 

The plans for the 2016/17 financial year in Roodeplaat include the development of the EMP which will guide suitable development of 
the Roodeplaat Dam as a tourism hub. The plans for Roodeplaat Dam also includes the preparation of the site for tourism development 
through the provision of the solar light panels, development of boat launch infrastructure, roofing of ablution facilities and the 
development of a landscape architectural plan. A priority for 2016/17 will be the construction of modern picnic sites accessible to 
people of all abilities which will encourage the enjoyment of outdoors in Roodeplaat. In Cullinan, the architectural design of three 
gateways will be completed in 2016/17; the construction of the gateways in the 2017 /18 financial year is expected to promote 
township economic revitalisation through the establishment of enterprises at the gateways. 

In the Dinokeng Game Reserve, the Programme will do an aerial game count which is a major bio-monitoring action in wildlife 
management. Game counts are used to provide a parameter for decision support in the decision-making process that determines the 
effectiveness of human interventions to ensure sustainable habitat utilisation. When an asset like game continues to grow unchecked, 
it will necessarily lead to unsustainable habitat utilisation such as overgrazing and erosion, to name a few consequences. Dinokeng 
Game Reserve is too small to have the inherent resilience to recover from population collapses which could result from unchecked 
population growth occurring without human intervention. This fact confirms the principle that the smaller a protected area is, the 
more intensive the management interventions will be required to ensure the protection of ecological processes. Effectively, small 
reserves are more expensive to manage than large reserves. 

Efforts to expand the DGR will continue with negotiations to facilitate written commitments and to consolidate fragmented pieces into 
ecologically and economically viable units for incorporation with extended infrastructure. 

The Working on Fire project which employs 50 people will proceed with the Fire management programme. 

The management obligations as contained in the Memorandum of Understanding with the military regarding the incorporation of 
their proclaimed nature reserve into the DGR will continue. 

The implementation of the Environmental Management Plan for the DGR will continue with the support provided to the Game 
Management Committee with scientific decision support and compliance to environmental legislation. In addition, the EMP document 
that is used currently was developed in 2009 and is now deemed old and will be reviewed. 

The Public Participation and Community Benefits Unit will continue to work with the Gauteng Enterprise Propeller for the support, 
growth and development of SMMEs and cooperatives. The Unit will also continue to work with the DGR on the SMME opportunity 
in the game reserve on the picnic site along self-drive routes. It will also continue working with the GaRankuwa Hotel School on the 
training programme and will also continue to work with various stakeholders in creating the necessary platforms essential for a formal 
process of managing stakeholder relations. 
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Report of the Auditor-General to the Gauteng Provincial Legislature on the Dinokeng 

Trading Entity 

Report on the financial statements 

Introduction 

1 . I have audited the financial statements of the Dinokeng Trading Entity set out on pages 72 to 102, which comprise the 

statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the statement of financial performance. statement of changes in net 

assets, cash flow statement and statement of comparison of budget with actual amounts for the year then ended, as well 

as the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Accounting officer's responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

with the South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice !SA Standards of GRAP) and the

requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa. l 999 !Act No. l of 1999) jPFMA) and for such 

internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are

free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-generals responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in

accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements,

and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 

material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the trading entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Dinokeng Trading

Entity as at 31 March 2016 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the

SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

Emphasis of Matter 

7. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 

8. As disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 20 l 5 have been restated as a 
result of an error discovered during the year ended 31 March 20 l 6 in the financial statements of the trading entity for the

year ended 31 March 2015.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

9. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 !Act No. 25 of 2004) 1PM) and the general notice issued in

terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report findings on the reported performance information against predetermined

objectives for selected strategic goals presented in the annual performance report. non-compliance with legislation and 

internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable findings as described under each subheading but not

to gather evidence to express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these

matters.
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Pre-determined objectives 

10. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for
the following selected strategic goals presented in the annual performance report of the trading entity for the year ended
31 March 2016:
0 Strategic goal 4: A critical mass of tourism infrastructure and significant attractions ensuring the integrity, viability 

and equity of the Dinokeng project area as a tourism destination on page 102 

11 . I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether it was presented in accordance 
with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned strategic goals. I further performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable, 
specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's Framework for managing programme 

performance information (FMPPlj 

12. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid, accurate and complete.

13. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for the
selected strategic goals.

Additional matter 

14. Although I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information for
the selected strategic goals, I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets 

15. Refer to the Annual Performance Report on page 102 for information on the achievement of planned targets for the year.

Compliance with legislation 

16. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the trading entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. I did not identify any material instances of non
compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PM.

Internal control 

17. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, the performance report and compliance with
legislation. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

AU DI TO R - GE N E R AL 

SOUTH AF RICA 

Auditing to build public confidence 

Johannesburg 

31 July 2016 
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Report of the Accounting Officers 

GENERAL REVIEW OF THE CRADLE OF HUMUNl<IND WORLD HERITAGE SITE AND 

DINOl<ENG PROJECTS 

The Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects continue to execute important components of the Gauteng 

Tourism Development Strategy (GTDS). Work which was executed in the past year indicates a commitment to productive partnerships, 
economic growth and community development. This Annual Report once again provides strong evidence of sustained service delivery, 
performance against targets and the tackling of important challenges during the 2015/16 financial year. 

During the year under review, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site has continued to grow into its role as an iconic world

class tourism destination. Critical success factors have included the competitive marketing, management and appropriate development 

of the greater tourism landscape. The Interpretation Centre Complex, comprising of Maropeng and Sterkfontein, has continued to 

provide a focal point of this superb and endlessly fascinating destination, and improvements on Hominin House have been completed, 
whilst further developments to refresh the exhibitions and enhance the tourism offerings of the Interpretation Centre Complex are 

continuing, beyond the year under review. 

The continued support by government for schools visiting Maropeng has underlined the objective of providing greater awareness of 
our universal African origins. That support is beginning to bear fruit, as manifested in the transformation and diversification of those 
involved in the subject Palaeoanthropology. To this end, there has been a marked and continuous increase of women, and particularly 
black women, in this challenging field, which a few decades ago seemed to have been the exclusive domain of white males. Scientists 
have shown a hitherto unknown level of co-operation, and the year has been notable for the announcement of Homo na/ecfias 

a new species of hominin. South Africa in general (and Gauteng in particular) has made a huge contribution in understanding of 

universal human origins. The vast number of fossil fragments from the Rising Star cave has affirmed South Africa's position as the origin 
centre of our human ancestors, in that about half of the world's known fragments of human ancestors and their relatives come from 
here. 

The dedicated staff of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site has continued to ensure that development is controlled in 
accordance and in compliance with applicable and relevant legislation. The very same staff has also supported the continuous 

development of leisure activities, which enhances the destination, particularly through the development of mountain bike trails. With 
the established popularity of the site amongst the road cyclists, the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site is now almost certainly 
the most popular cycling destination in the whole of South Africa, based on sheer numbers. 

For its part, the Dinokeng Project has continued to make very positive progress, with the star attraction remaining the Dinokeng Big 
Five Game Reserve. These charismatic large mammals have popular appeal, but we should always be mindful that they form part of.a 

complex and ever changing ecosystem; therein lies our responsibility to conserve, preserve and interpret their continued existence and 
interaction with humanity. The self-drive route development which we have has been reported on, in the past, is now complete and 

operational. It is gaining in popularity as the ecotourism community becomes increasingly aware of this exceptionally accessible option 
for game viewing, birding and other nature-related activities. The self-drive area has become the home to Bblue (cranes and Gauteng's 
only known breeding pair of Martial Eagles. 

The Dinokeng Game Reserve is only one component of a bigger project, which includes the Cullinan Hub and Roodeplaat Nature 

Reserve. The three combine to constitute the Gauteng City Region's intervention strategy for the resuscitation through tourism of the 
area, which has been economically depressed. This determination followed a thorough assessment, and as a result of these projects, 
the area is beginning to show signs of massive development and growth in the economic and tourism spaces. Admittedly, more must 
still be done, more so in terms of employment and inclusion of local communities within the tourism mainstream. 

Through its activities, the Dinokeng Project ensures that it encourages and/or promotes initiatives with direct and indirect social 
impact, as well as those that result in the conservation of the outstanding universal value of the site through environmental 
interventions. As in previous years, firebreaks on the game reserve perimeter were handled successfully through the active involvement 
and co-operation of the Working on Fire group. 

The completed P25 (Kl 4) road in its first full year of operation has enormously improved access to Cullinan, as has the completed 
phase of the signage plan. 

During the year under review, tourism has continued to hold its own against other sectors in the economy, and has continued to 

grow in both real and comparative terms. This is most meaningful if tourism continues to create work opportunities and precipitates 
skills transfer in tourism and the cluster of industries that benefit from tourism. 

Once again, the staff of the Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site and Dinokeng Projects have demonstrated devotion to 

excellence, originality and creativity and have deported themselves with due diligence. I believe this Annual Report will serve as 
a glowing testimonial to those who continue to serve these esteemed projects that continue to grow in international recognition, 

significance and well deserved acclaim. 

On behalf of the Gauteng Provincial Government (GPG) I would like to convey my total appreciation and support to all the 
stakeholders for their partnership, hard work and commitment to the development of these outstanding destinations which have 

continued to occupy a dominant place in the tourism landscape and grow to become examples of real and lasting excellence. 
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE ENTITIES 

Stable 1 Analysis per TRADING ENTITY 

Name of Trading Entity 2015/2016 2014/2015 

Final Actual Under Expenditure Final Actual Under Expenditure 
Appropriation Appropriation 

Expenditure Expenditure 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Dinokeng Project 53 570 38 329 15 241 37 736 33 612 4 027 

Total 53 570 38 329 15 241 37 736 33 612 4 027 

Cradle of Humankind 71 377 38 969 32 408 72 628 58 165 5 015 

World Heritage Site 

Total 71 377 38 969 32 408 72 628 58 165 5 015 

Furthermore, under spending within the entities was as follows: 

Dinokeng Projects 

Dinokeng spent 71 .5% of the adjusted appropriation amount of R53 570 million with actual expenditure at R38 329 million, with an 
under spend of R l  5 241 million 128,5%). 

The under spend is attributed to the reviewed and revised Annual Performance Plan that was aligned to the new mandate that 
focuses on the destination management, emanating from the separation from the Gauteng Tourism Authority. 

Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site 

Cradle of Humankind Dinokeng spent 54.6% of the adjusted appropriation amount of R71 377 million with actual expenditure at 

R38 969 million, with an under spend of R32 408 million (45,4%). 

The under spend is attributed to the reviewed and revised Annual Performance Plan that was aligned to the new mandate that 
focuses on the destination management, emanating from the separation from the Gauteng Tourism Authority. 

During the 2015/16 financial year, 100% of creditors were processed and paid within 14 days and 100% within 30 days, an 
unprecedented achievement two years in succession. This ensured that SMME's were enabled to operate continuously. 

Events after the reporting date 

The entities have no significant event after the reporting date that needs to be reported. 

Other 

The Dinokeng and Cradle of Humankind World Heritage Site prepares its Annual Financial Statements on the Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practise (GRAP) on an accrual basis which is populated on a specific template that is provided by National Treasury. 

The 201 5/16 financial year was the first year in which the two entities reported under the Department of Economic Development after 
migrating from the Gauteng Tourism Authority so that they focus on the supply side of tourism. 

Acknowledgement/s or Appreciation 

I would hereby like to extend my gratitude to the MEC for his political leadership during the year under review. To the senior 
management of the Entities and their authorities, thank you for your contribution in implementing the mandate of the Department. 
To our oversight bodies, including the Cluster O 1 Audit Committee, Gauteng Audit Services and the Portfolio Committee, thank you for 
assisting us to improve our internal control environment, compliance and governance. 

Conclusion 

The Accounting Officer has taken due cognisance of all relevant legislations, prescripts of the World Heritage Convention Act and 
those issued by UNESCO and have exercised an informed judgement on the management of the entities.With careful consideration 
on the prudent utilisation of financial resources allocated to meet the strategic objectives of the entities and the Gauteng Provincial 
Government, outcome measures were implemented that minimised inherent organisational risks and the prevention of incidences 
of fraud and corruption. The entities managed to maintain functional governance structures that provided the organisational policy 
directive and management oversight responsibility. 

Approval and sign off 

The Annual Financial Statements as set out on pages __ were approved by the Accounting Officer. 
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GAUTENG PROVINCIAL GOVERNMENT (GPG) 

Report of the Audit Committee - Cluster O 1 

Dinokeng and The Cradle of Humankind 

We are pleased to present our report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016. 

Audit Committee and Attendance 

The Audit Committee consists of the external Members listed hereunder and is required to meet a minimum of at least two times per 
annum as per provisions of the Public Finance Management Act IPFMA). In terms of the approved Terms of Reference (GPG Audit 
Committee Charter), five meetings were held during the current year, i.e. three meetings to consider the Quarterly Performance 
Reporting (financial and non-financial) and two meetings to review and discuss the Annual Financial Statements and the Auditor
General of South Africas (AGSA) Audit and Management Reports. 

Non-Executive 

Name of Member Number of Meetings Attended 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker 04 

Mr. Mandia Ncube 04 

Ms. Masaccha Mbonambi 05 

Executive Members 

In terms of the GPG Audit Committee Charter, officials listed hereunder are obliged to attend meetings of the Audit Committee: 

Compulsory Attendees Number of Meetings Attended 

Ms. Phindile Mbanjwa (Accounting Officer) 04 

Mr. Kgomotso Mojapelo (Chief Financial Officer) 05 

Mr. Oupa Tshule (Chief Risk Officer) 05 

The Audit Committee noted that the Accounting Officer attended four (04) out of five (05) scheduled Audit Committee meetings. 
However, a letter of apology was tendered with duly authorized representative attending on behalf of the Accounting Officer. 
Therefore. the Audit Committee is satisfied that the Entities adhered to the provisions of the GPG Audit Committee Charter in relation 
to ensuring that there is proper representation for the Accounting Officer. 

The Committee hereby also, confirms that Members of the Audit Committee met with Senior Management of the Entities, Internal 
Audit and the Auditor-General collectively to address risks and challenges facing the Entities. A number of in-committee meetings were 
held to address control weaknesses and deviations within the Entities. 

Audit Committee Responsibility 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 38( 1 }(a) of the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulation 3.1.13. The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate formal terms of reference as its Audit Committee 
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein. 
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The effectiveness of internal control and Information and Communication Technology (ICT) Governance 

In line with the PFMA and the recommendations from King Ill Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides 
the Audit Committee and Management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and effective. This is achieved by 
means of the risk management process, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls 
and processes. The Audit Committee has observed that the overall control environment of the Entities remains at significantly high 
levels and wishes to compliment the Management for its efforts. 

The Audit Committee also reviewed progress with respect to the ICT Governance in line with the ICT Framework issued by the 
Department of Public Service and Administration and wishes to encourage the controlling Department of Economic Development 
to ensure that these Entities are incorporated into its plans going forward. There were no significant findings identified and the ICT 
Governance controls were adequately maintained during the year under review. 

Internal Audit 

The Audit Committee is satisfied that the Internal Audit plan represents a clear alignment with the key risks, has adequate information 
systems coverage, and a good balance across the different categories of audits, i.e. risk-based, mandatory, performance, computer and 
follow-up audits. 

The Audit Committee has noted considerable improvement in the communication between the Executive Management, the AGSA and 
the Internal Audit Function, which has strengthened the Corporate Governance initiatives within the Entities. 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of quarterly reports prepared and issued by Internal Audit for the Entities 
during the year under review. The Audit Committee wishes to stress that in order for the Internal Audit Function to operate at optimal 
level as expected by the Audit Committee, the shortage in human resources and skills should be addressed. 

Risi< Management 

Progress on the risk management was reported to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. The Audit Committee is satisfied that the 
actual management of risk is receiving attention, although there are areas that still require improvement. Management should take full 
responsibility for the entire Enterprise Risk Management process and continue to support the Chief Risk Officer to even further enhance 
the performance of the Entities. 

Forensic Investigations 

The PFMA and its regulations clearly stipulate that matters such as incurring unauthorised, irregular as well as fruitless and wasteful 
expenditure, possible abuse of SCM system (including fraud and improper conduct) and allegations of financial misconduct should be 
investigated. 

The quality of quarterly reports submitted in terms of the PFMA and the Division of Revenue Act 

The Audit Committee is satisfied with the content and quality of financial and non-financial quarterly reports prepared and submitted 
by the Accounting Officer of the Entities during the year under review and confirms that the reports were in compliance with the 
statutory reporting framework. 

Evaluation of Annual Financial Statements 

The Audit Committee has: 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements to be included in the Annual Report, with the AGSA and 
the Accounting Officer;

• Reviewed the Audit Report of the AGSA; 
• Reviewed the AGSA's Management Report and Management's response thereto;
• Reviewed the Entities' compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; and
• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit. 

The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the AGSA's conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements, and is of the opinion that 
the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the AGSA. 

The Audit Committee wishes to commend the management of these Entities on having no material misstatements in its annual 
financial statements. 

One-on-One Meeting with the Accounting Officer 

The Audit Committee has met with the Accounting Officer for the Entities to address unresolved issues. 

One-on-One Meetings with the Executive Authority 

The Audit Committee has met with the Executive Authority for the Entities to apprise the MEC on the performance of the Entities. 
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Auditor-General of South Africa 

The Audit Committee has met with the AGSA to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. 

Mr. Vishnu Naicker 

Chairperson of the Audit Committee 

Date: 31 July 2016 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 201 6 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Property, plant and equipment 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Payables from non-exchange 

Provisions 

Accumulated surplus 

Note(sl 

3 

4 

5 

6 

24 

7 
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2016 

R'000 

29,060 

29,060 

47 

29,107 

1,962 

302 

Z,Z64 

Z,Z64 

26,843 

26,843 

2015 

Restated* 

R'000 

48 

22,802 

22,850 

84 

22,934 

3,263 

9,373 

345 

12,981 

IZ,981 

9,953 

9,953 

Statement of Financial Performance as at 31 March 201 6 

Note(sl 

Other income 8 

Government grants and subsidies 9 

2016 

R '000 

1,649 

53,570 

2015 

Restated* 

R'000 

1,410 

37,736 
----------------------------------

Employee related costs 10 (10,8441 (12,5431 

Depreciation and amortisation (371 (431 

Repairs and maintenance (4931 (4521 

Transfers and subsidies (3,6001 (4,0311 

General Expenses 11 (23,3551 (16,5391 

(38,329) (33,608) 

Loss on disposal of assets (51 

16,890 5,533 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets as at 31 March 201 6 

Opening balance as previously reported 
Adjustments 
Surrender to Provincial Treasury 

Prior year adjustments 

Changes in net assets 

Surplus for the year 
Total changes 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 
Total changes 
8,11,mc•? Jt M,11ct1 3 1, 7U 1 o 

Note(s) 

Cash Flow Statement as at 31 March 201 6 

Grants 
Interest income 

Employee costs 
Suppliers 
Other payments 

Net Ci\St1 flov.ffl trom opcr�,t,n(] 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Note(s) 

12 

4 

2016 

R'000 

13,846 

(9,373) 

(53) 

4,420 

5,533 
5,533 

9,953 

16,890 
16,890 

26,843 

2016 

R'000 

53,570 

1,649 
55,219 

(10,844) 
(38,117) 

(48,961) 
6,258 

6,258 

22,802 
29,060 

2015 

R ·ooo 

13,846 

(9,373) 

(53) 

4,420 

5,533 
5,533 

9,953 

16,890 
16,890 

26,843 

2015 

Restated* 

R'000 

37,736 
1,409 

39,145 

(12,543) 
(19,445) 

(9,176) 
(41. 164) 

12,019) 

12,019) 

24,821 
22,802 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 

Budget on Cash Basis Approved Adjustments Final Actual Difference Reference 
budget Budget amounts on between 

comparable final 

basis 
budget and 

actual 

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

Statement of Financial f>erf 

Other income 1,649 1,649 21.1 

Government grants & subsidies 67,970 (14,400) 53,570 53,570 21.2 

67,970 (14,400) 53,570 55,219 1,649 

Personnel (16,682) (16,682) (10,844) 5,838 21.3 

Depreciation and amortisation (37) (37) 21.4 

Repairs and maintenance (493) (493) (493) 21.5 

Transfers and Subsidies (3,600) (3,600) (3,600) 21.6 

General Expenses (20,775) (20,775) (23,355) (2,580) 21.7 

(41,550) (41,550) (38,329) 3,221 

26,420 (14,400) 12,020 16,890 4,870 

26,420 (14,400) 12,020 16,890 4,870 



Accounting Policies as at 31 March 2016 

1 . Presentation of Annual Financial Statements 
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The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice 
(GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91 ( 1) of the Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 
1999). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual financial 
statements, are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period. 

1.1 Going concern assumption 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity will continue to operate as a going 
concern for at least the next 1 2 months. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production 
or supply of goods or seNices, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one 
period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
• it is probable that future economic benefits or seNice potential associated with the item will flow to the entity; and 
• the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's 
fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently 
to add to, replace part of, or seNice it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included in 
the cost of property, plant and equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as 
a result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories. 

Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Major spare parts and stand by equipment which are expected to be used for more than one period are included in property, plant 
and equipment. In addition, spare parts and stand by equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and equipment. 

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet the 
recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. Any remaining 
inspection costs from the previous inspection are derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual 
value. 
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The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 

Office equipment 

Computer equipment 

Depreciation method 

Straight line 

Straight line 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

Average useful life 

5-10 years

4-7 years

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If the 

expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless expectations 
differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 

depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 

benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when the 
item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

Assets which the entity holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities, are 
transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets are recognised 

as revenue. All cash flows on these assets are included in cash flows from operating activities in the cash flow statement. 

1.3 Financial instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of 

another entity. 

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial liability is measured 
at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of 
any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. 

A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related. 

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an 
obligation. 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. 

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity's statement of financial 

position. 

A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign 

exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of 
a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the contract (sometimes called the 'underlying' ) . 

It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of 
contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors. 
It is settled at a future date . 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of 
financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective 
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When 
calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument 
(for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and 
points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP 
on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash 
flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it 
is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the 
entity shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments). 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in an 
arm's length transaction. 

A financial asset is: 



• a residual interest of another entity; or
• a contractual right to: 
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0 receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 
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0 exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially favourable 
to the entity. 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 
instrument. 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 
• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. 

Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that 
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. Loans payable are financial 
liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms. 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. 

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices !other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the 
individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. 

A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due. 

A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. A 

residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as: 

• equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
• a formal designation of a transfer of resources !or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as forming part

of an entity's net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
• a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing financial interest in the net assets

of an entity. 

Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial 
liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the 
financial instrument. 

Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial liabilities that have fixed or 
determinable payments, excluding those instruments that: 

• the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
• are held for trading.

Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market, and 
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. 

Financial instruments at fair value comprise financial assets or financial liabilities that are: 

• 

derivatives; 
combined instruments that are designated at fair value; 
instruments held for trading. A financial instrument is held for trading if: 
0 it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or 
0 on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for 

which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term profit-taking; 
0 

0 

0 

non-derivative financial assets or financial liabilities with fixed or determinable payments that are designated at 
fair value at initial recognition; and 
financial instruments that do not meet the definition of financial instruments at amortised cost or financial 
instruments at cost. 
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1.4 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. When an 
asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of the 
loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation !amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial return 
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax expense. 

Depreciation !Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Useful life is 
either: 

(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or 
lb) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity. 

Criteria developed by the entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as follow: 

1.5 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, !those payable within 1 2 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the service is 
rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive obligation 
to make such payments as a result of past performance. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed !or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans where 
the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method. Actuarial valuations are 
conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. 

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is 
performed at an earlier date. 

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on a 
straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten percent of 
the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets !the corridor), that portion is 
recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of participating employees. Actuarial gains or losses 
within the corridor are not recognised. 

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably committed to 
curtailment or settlement. 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other respects, the 
asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit plan is presented as the 
net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 



( DINOKENG 
I Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of plan assets. 

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and reduction in 
future contributions to the plan. 

1.6 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
• the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
• it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the 

obligation; and
• a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures expected to be 
required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimbursement 
is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the entity settles the obligation. The 
reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does not exceed the amount of the 
provision. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no longer 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This increase is 
recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. Provisions are not recognised for future 
operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and measured as 
a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
• has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least

0 the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
0 the principal locations affected; 
0 the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 

terminated; 
0 the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
0 when the plan will be implemented; and

• has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that plan or
announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
• necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
• not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the entity is committed to the sale or transfer, that is, 
there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are subsequently 
measured at the higher of: 

• the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
• the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note . 

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss 
it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt 
instrument. 

Loan commitment is a firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions. 

The entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation 
can be made. 
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Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in relation to financial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that an 
outflow of resources may be probable are: 

• financial difficulty of the debtor; 
• defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor; 

breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the ability of
the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and

• a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact on the 
ability of entities to repay their obligations. 

Where a fee is received by the entity for issuing a financial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments, it is 
considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. Where a fee is charged 
and the entity considers that an outflow of economic resources is probable, an entity recognises the obligation at the higher of: 

• 

• 

1.7 

the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and 
the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with 
the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions. 

Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the outflow 
of cash. 

Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments. 

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial statements, 
if both the following criteria are met: 

• Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost (for example, contracts for computer or building 
maintenance services); and 

• Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity - therefore salary 
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benefit commitments are excluded. 

1 .8 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners .  

An exchange transaction is one in which the entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an 
arms length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Interest, Royalties and Dividends 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is recognised 
when: 

• It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, and 

The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

Royalties are recognised as they are earned in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements. 

Dividends or similar distributions are recognised, in surplus or deficit, when the entity's right to receive payment has been established. 

Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is performed. 

1.9 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefits or service potential received and receivable by an entity, which represents an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the 
asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the 
transferor. 

- ___ .._ --·- - · - ·'- - ·· ... ,_ - ___ ... _ · --- · ·-- -- _,.._ __ • ··-- '----. .... r-. �---- •L-..-. ............... ·...., .... , , .. ,.., ,·., ..... � ·+,.. ,....."""·,...,-�·.,,...,.. -,,.,....-f ,....,.,.... ""'vr-1, ,A.o .-.. .. 
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Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and directly gives 
approximately equal value !primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in exchange. 

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an entity either 
receives value from another entity without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to another entity 
without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used, but do not 
specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be returned to the transferor if not deployed as specified. 

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a binding arrangement, imposed upon the use of a transferred 
asset by entities external to the reporting entity. 

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide certain taxpayers with concessions that are not available to 
others. 

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation. 

Taxes are economic benefits or service potential compulsorily paid or payable to entities, in accordance with laws and or regulations, 
established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penalties imposed for breaches of the law. 

Transfers are inflows of future economic benefits or service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes. 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent that a 
liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction 
recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of revenue equal to that 
reduction. 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity. 

When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to the amount 
of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability. Where a liability is 
required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, 
and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, because the 
taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue. 

1.10 Comparative figures 

Where necessary. comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.11 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance 
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and where 
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.12 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including -

la) this Act; or 
lb) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 !Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
le) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 7611) to 7614) of the PFMA requires the 
following !effective from 1 April 2008): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/ 
or before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an 
instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being awaited 
at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating the 
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Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 

register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the National 
Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the irregular 
expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps must 

thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or accounting 

authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial statements. The irregular 

expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and no person is liable in 

law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note 

to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

1.13 Related parties 

The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African 

Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only entities 

within the provincial sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity, including those charged 
with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform such functions. 

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity. 

Only t�ansactions with related parties not at arm's length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 

1.14 Events after reporting date 

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the date 

when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified: 

• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date !adjusting events after the reporting date); 
• and 
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once the 
event occurred. 

The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be made 

in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements. 

2. New standards and interpretations

GRAP 20: Related parties 

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity's annual financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to 

draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of related 

parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to as the 
reporting entity) shall apply this standard in: 

• identifying related party relationships and transactions; 
• identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties;
• identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in la) and lb) is required; and 
• determining the disclosures to be made about those items.

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, in the 

consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Consolidated and 

Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to individual annual financial statements. 

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related parties may 
affect users' assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to deliver agreed services, 
including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures that the reporting entity is 

transparent about its dealings with related parties. 

The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or exercise 

significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint control. As a minimum, 
the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity: 

• A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the reporting entity if that person:
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0 has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 
0 has significant influence over the reporting entity; 
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An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: 
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0 the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled entity 

• 

and fellow controlled entity is related to the others); 
0 one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of 

an economic entity of which the other entity is a member); 
0 both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 
0 one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; 
0 the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity related to 

the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan. the sponsoring employers are related to the entity; 
0 

0 

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and 
a person identified in (a)li) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of that 
entity (or its controlling entity). 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the reporting 

entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged. 

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of: 

• Close member of the family of a person; 
• Management; 
• Related parties; 
• Remuneration; and 
• Significant influence 

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of: 

• Control; 
• Related party transactions; and
• Remuneration of management 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after April 0 1, 2016. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2016 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 

GRAP32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public sector entity. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions. recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and measurement of 

liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and disclosure. transitional 
provisions, as well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister set the effective date for the standard. It is unlikely that 
the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 

GRAP108: Statutory Receivables 

The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
of statutory receivables. 

It furthermore covers: Definitions. recognition, derecognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure. transitional provisions. as 
well as the effective date. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister set the effective date for the standard. It is unlikely that 
the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 

IGRAP17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Significant 

Residual Interest in an Asset 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered into a service concession 
arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual interest in a service 
concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease. This Interpretation of the 
Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or arrangements. 
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the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the grantor for a specified period of time. The operator is 

compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through payments, or through receiving 
a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the operator is given access to another revenue

generating asset of the grantor for its use. 

Before the grantor can recognise a service concession asset in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 

Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP need to be met. In 

some service concession arrangements, the grantor only controls the residual interest in the service concession asset at the end of the 
arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession 
Arrangements: Grantor. 

A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation and the right 
to receive a significant interest in a service concession asset. 

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time when the Minister set the effective date for the standard. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entitys annual financial statements. 

DIRECTIVE 11: Changes in measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards 

of GRAP 

The objective of this Directive is to permit an entity to change its measurement bases following the initial adoption of Standards 

of GRAP. The change is based on the principles in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors. This Directive should therefore be read in conjunction with the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

In applying paragraph 13(bl of the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, this 
Directive allows an entity, that has initially adopted the fair value model for investment property or the revaluation model for property, 
plant and equipment, intangible assets or heritage assets, to change its accounting policy on a once-off basis 

to the cost model when the entity elects to change its accounting policy following the initial adoption of these Standards of 

GRAP. The once-off change will be allowed when the entity made an inappropriate accounting policy choice on the initial adoption of 
the Standards of GRAP. 

Subsequent to the application of this Directive, an entity will be allowed to change its accounting policy in future periods subject to it 
meeting the requirements in the Standard of GRAP on Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after April 0 1, 2016. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2016 annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's annual financial statements. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 

31 March 201 6 

3. Receivables from exchange transactions 

Loans and receivables 

4. Ca�l1 and cc1sl1 equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 

Bank balances 

Cost/ 

5. Property, plant c1nd equipment 

Office equipment 

Computer equipment 

Total 

Valuation 

24 

440 

464 

Reconc111ation of property, plant and equipment - 20 I 6 

Office equipment 

Computer equipment 

r{eco11c1limion of p1opertf, plant and equiRm nt 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

(22) 

(395) 

{4171 

Note(s) 

Carrying 
value 

2 

45 

47 

Opening balance 

7 

77 

84 

Office equipment 

Computer equipment 

Opening balance 

12 

120 

Disposals 

(5) 

6. Payables from exchang 

Trade payables 

Inter entity 

* * Staff leave accruals 

Other payables 

132 (5) 

2016 

R'000 

3 

29,057 

29,060 

Cost/ Accumulated 
Valuation depreciation 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

24 

440 

464 

Depreciation 

(5) 

(32) 

(37) 

Depreciation 

(5) 

(38) 

(43) 

459 

861 

642 

1,962 

(17) 

(363) 

{380) 

2015 

R'000 

48 

3 

22,799 

22,802 

Carrying 
value 

7 

77 

84 

Total 

2 

45 

47 

Total 

7 

77 

84 

2,620 

43 

598 

2 

3,263 

* * Included in staff leave accruals is a negative leave balance of R 6k which is as a result of resolution 7 of 2000 which 
allows employees to accrue leave days on the 1 st of January every year irrespective of employment date. 
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Note(sl 

Opening Additions Utilised during the 

Balance 
year 

Provisions - 292 (1661 251 
Performance bonus 

Provisions - capped 53 (11 
leave 

345 (1671 251 

Opening Utilised during the 

Balance 
year 

Provision - Performance bonus 210 (1451 
Provisions Capped leave 

210 (1451 

8. , Other income ' ,_ 
: ".'. 

., , , . ' 

Interest received 

Sundry income 

9. Governm;;;.t grants and subsidies .,, 

Transfer payment received 

• 

Acting allowances 

Bargaining council - company contribution 

Basic 

Capped leave provision charge 

Housing benefits and allowances 

Leave pay provision charge 

Medical aid - company contributions 

Pension - company contribution 

Performance Bonus 

Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other allowances 

1 3th Cheques 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'OOO 

Reversed during 

the year 

(1271 

(1271 

Additions 

227 

53 

280 

1,647 

2 

1,649 

53,570 

16 

8,613 

( 11 

206 

359 

980 

124 

546 

10,844 

2015 

R '000 

Total 

250 

52 

302 

Total 

292 

53 

345 

1,410 

1,410 

37,736 

336 

10,003 

196 

10 

281 

930 

219 

15 

552 

12,543 
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Note(s) 

General expenses 

Advertising and marketing 

Auditors remuneration 

Bank charges 

Cleaning 

Electricity 

Entertainment 

Insurance 

Printing and stationery 

Refuse 

Rental Expense 

Security 

Software expenses 

Tax on performance bonus 

Technical and Consulting services 

Telephone and fax 

Travel and subsistance 

Venue and facilities expenses 

12. Casl1 generated from (used 1n) o 

Surplus 

Depreciation and amortisation 

Loss on disposal of assets 

Movements in provisions 

Surrender to Provincial Treasury 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Payables from non exchange transactions 

1 3. Prior perio s 

I Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R ·ooo

1,938 

647 

3 

205 

280 

22 

2,463 

207 

93 

16,930 

28 

293 

245 

23,355 

16,890 

37 

(43) 

48 

(1,301) 

(9,373) 

6,258 

2015 

R'OOO 

9,007 

433 

6 

188 

391 

17 

16 

8 

14 

2,260 

190 

30 

3,460 

110 

205 

204 

16,539 

5,533 

43 

5 

(9,094) 

(9,373) 

(23) 

10,890 

(2,019) 

During the current period adjustments were processed for the previous financial period.Capped leave was previously recognised as 
a contingent liability . In accordance with Grap 19, capped leave meets the definition of a provision. 

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows: 

Statement of financial position 

Provision - Capped Leave (53) 

Opening Accumulated Surplus or Deficit 53 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Members 

Controlling entity 

Fellow Controlled entities 

Note(s) 

2016 

R '000 

Refer to members' report note 

Gauteng Department of Economic 
Development 

World Heritage Site 

2015 

R'OOO 

During the year the entity realised that all related parties transactions were disclosed including those that are at arm's length, and 
this was not consistent with GRAP 20. The impact of this correction on the Annual Financial Statements are nil. 

l 5. Members· emoluments · 

Basic salary 

Kananelo Tlebere 432 

Matthew 368 
Sathekge 

Shamilla Chettiar 322 

Nina Layton 268 

Mags Pillay 280 

Adrian Amod 321 

1,991 

Basic salary 

Kananelo Tlebere 447 

Matthew 354 
Sathekge 

Shamilla Chettiar 300 

Nina Layton 269 

Mags Pillay 268 

Adrian Amod 304 

Dawn Robertson 501 

Yaseen Asmal 406 

2,849 

Employer Employer 

contribution contribution 

pension medical 

56 8 

48 

42 13 

36 3 

36 3 

42 17 

260 44 

Employer Employer 

contribution contribution 

pension medical 

58 9 

46 

39 12 

35 3 

35 3 

39 17 

252 44 

Bonus & 
notch increase 

payable 

39 

23 

23 

21 

106 

Allowances 

87 

190 

149 

118 

118 

49 

711 

. -;f ·� • '", 
- ?,.· ,•; 

. - ; ,. -' 

Allowances Total 

85 620 

198 614 

160 537 

123 453 

123 465 

79 480 

768 3,169 

Bonus & Total 

notch increase 

payable 

37 638 

590 

500 

53 478 

23 447 

25 434 

501 

406 

138 3,994 

• During the 201 4/ 1 5 financial year an employee holding a position of Deputy Director, was incorrectly disclosed as part of the 
members emoluments, the individual was paid an amount of R 290 000, for the 2014/15 financial year. 

Already contracted for but not provided for 

• Consulting fees 

Advertising fees

150 

184 

334 

403 

403 
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Note(s) 

Already contracted for but not provided for 

There was no capital commitments during the 201 5/ l 6 financial year. 

I Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'000 

334 

2015 

R'000 

403 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

,-� . 

18. h regular expenditure

Opening balance 

Less: Amounts condoned 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 

Provision 

Loans to directors. managers and employees 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 

Payable from non-exchange 

Provision 

4,654 

4,654 

At fair value 

29,060 

At fair value 

1,962 

250 

2,212 

At fair value 

48 

22,802 

22,850 

At fair value 

3,263 

9,373 

292 

12,928 

20,471 

115,817) 

4,654 

Total 

29,060 

Total 

1,962 

250 

2,212 

Total 

48 

22,802 

22,850 

Total 

3,263 

9,373 

292 

12,928 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Note(s) 

20. Risk management

Financial risk management 

Liquidity risk 

Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

2016 

R'000 

2015 

R'000 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meets its obligations associated with financial liabilities.Liquidity risk 
management within the entity focuses on working capital management, cash balances and cash flow planning. coupled with liquidity 
support arrangements with the Department of Economic Development . 

The entity's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The entity manages liquidity risk through an 
ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

The table below analyses the entity's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the 
statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within 1 2 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant. 

At March 31, 2016 

Trade and other payables exchange 

Leave pay 

Provisions -Performance bonus 

Provisions - Capped leave 

At March 31, 2015 

Trade and other payables exchange 

Trade and other payables non - exchange 

Leave pay 

Provisions 

Credit risk 

Not later than 

one month 

Not later than 

one month 

2,665 

50 

later than one Later than Over 5 years 

month and not three months 

later than three but not later 

months than a year 

1,319 

642 

250 

52 

later than one Later than Over 5 years 

month and not three months 

later than three but not later 

months than a year 

9,373 

200 348 

292 

The entity's financial assets are trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents. Credit risk refers to the risk that a 
counterparty will default on its obligations in respect of these instruments. The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not charge a 
fee for the service that it provides. The balance of receivables relates to the intercompany balances between the entity and Cradle of 
Humankind World Heritage Site. Both these entities are managed bt the same management. 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and trade debtors. The entity only 
deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Market risk 

Interest rate risk 

This is the risk that financial instrument fair values will fluctuate owing to changes in market prices. 

The entity is not exposed to this risk as it does not have any financial instruments whose value might be influenced by changes in 

market prices. The entitys financial instruments are only receivables and payables between the entity and its related parties. 



r DINOKENG I Annual Financial Statements 2015/2016 

I 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

21. Budget differences

Material differences between budget and actual amounts 

Note(s) 

2016 

R'000 

2015 

R'000 

Note 21. 1 Interest income was not budget for. as the interest generated are based on whether there will be surplus funds within the 

bank account. 

Note 21 . 3 Compensation of employees - The under spend is as a result of vacant posts. 

Note 21 .4 Depreciation - The entity do not budget for depreciation. 

Note 21 .5 Repairs and maintenance was budgeted for under general expenses 

Note 21 . 7 General expenses - The underspend is due to planned projects that were not executed in the current financial year. 

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget 

The changes between the approved and final budget are a consequence of adjustments, the Dinokeng budget was adjusted from 
R 67 970 million to R 53 570 million as the budget of R 14 400 million was reallocated to Gauteng Tourism Authority during the 
201 5/16 financial year. 

22. Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year .. 

In the prior year expenses where classified in terms of function and in the current year the expenses have shown according to their 

nature. 

The effects of the reclassification are as follows: 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Decrease in administrative expenses 

Increase in repairs and maintenance 

Increase in loss on disposal of assets 

Decrease in other operating expenses 

Increase in depreciation and amortisation 

Increase in general expenses 

23. Events after the reporting date

(13,102) 

452 

5 

(3,937) 

43 

16,539 

After the reporting date a new Chief Executive Officer. Mr Makhukhu Mampuru, was appointed on the O 1 April 2016. The entity is not 

aware of any other events that occurred after reporting date that will have an impact on the financial statements. 

24. Payables from non-exchange

Trade payables - Surrender to Treasury 9,373 
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Performance against targets for 201 5/1 6 financial year 

PROGRAMME 1 : DINOKENG 

STRATEGIC GOAL 4: A critical mass of tourism infrastructure and significant attractions 

ensuring the integrity, viability and equity of the Dinokeng Project 
area as a tourism destination 

.. 

Strategic infrastructure 

that support and 
facilitate economic 
transformation in 
Dinokeng Game Reserve 

2 An environmentally 
sustainable and 

conserved Dinokeng 
Game Reserve 

3 Strategic infrastructure 
that support and 
facilitate economic 
transformation in 
Roodeplaat 

4 Revitalised and 

mordenised township 
economy in Dinokeng 

5 Dinokeng repositioned 
as a coherent, unified 

and global recognised 
brand 

-

.

No. of 

kilometers 
developed 
for Phase 2 
of the self-

drive route in 
DGR 

No. of 
hectares 

cleared 
of alien 
vegetation in 
the DGR 

No. of 

Roodeplaat 
Dam picnic 
sites and 
ablution 

blocks 
upgraded 

Dinokeng 

Community 
Development 
Trust 
established 

Rand value 

generated 
in Dinokeng 
(DGR, 
Roodeplaat 

and Cullinan) 

34 km 

124 ha 

6 picnic sites 

and 

11 ablution 
blocks 
upgraded 

48,190,000 

-- J 

34 km Target achieved None 

124 ha Target achieved None 

O picnic 6 picnic sites and A SLA on the land user 
sites and rights between GDED 
ablution block 

11 ablution blocks 
and GDID had to be 

upgraded 
upgraded 

put in place prior to the 
actual development of 
the Roodeplaat Tourism 

Hub. A draft SLA was 
prepared and vetted 
by Legal Units of both 
departments. The SLA 
is now anticipated to 
be signed in the first 
quarter of 201 6/ 1 7 

0 The Trust Deed was 

not drafted. The 

project was put on 
hold for 2016/17 to 
be implemented after 

the local government 
elections. The local 

political climate in the 

area made it difficult to 
implement the project 

Value not Value not available There were delays in 

available the appointment of 
the service provider to 
conduct the Tourism 
Sector Business Case. 
The appointment was 
only made in February 

2016 and the results are 
expected to be available 

by the end of December 

2016 
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CRADLE OF HUMANKIND WORLD HERITAGE SITE AND DINOKENG PROJECTS 

201 5/16 ANNUAL REPORT - SECTION 8, HUMAN RESOURCES 

Personnel costs by salary band 

Highly skilled 2,773 
production (Levels 
6 - 8) --- ----
Highly skilled 15,905
supervision (Levels 
9 - 121 
Senior management 7,241 
(Levels 13 - 161 

� 

Contract ( Levels 24 
1 - 21 
Contract ( Levels 81 
6- 81

TOTAL 26,463 

I 0.3 173,313 

59 530,167 

26.9 1,206,833 

0.1 0 

0.3 0 

98.Z 456,259 

Total personnel Number of

cost fo1 deparment employees 
including goods 

and services {R'000) 

26,953 
26,953 

26,953 

26,953 

26,953 

26,9531 

26,953 

Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Programme 

6 
16 

30 

6 

0 

0 

58 

. . 

• • • • � J I • 

Overtime Overt;me ·1 HOA: . HOA ,Med_ical Medical Total personnel 
(R'000) as a% of (R'000) as% of Ass Ass as cost per 

personnel · personnel (R'000) % of programme 
cost cost personnel (R'000) 

cost 

GP:World 
Heritage Site 

TOTAL 

21,328 

Z13Z8 

79.1 0 

79.1 0 

0 358 1.3 688 2.6 

0 358 1.3 688 Z.6 

Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Salary Band 

. .. .., 

Skilled (Levels 346 78.6 0 0 11 2.5 18 4.1 
3- 5)
Highly skilled 2116 75.5 0 0 77 2.7 105 3.7 
production 
(Levels 6 - 81
Highly skilled 12482 76.7 0 0 209 1.3 478 2.9 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12_ 

l_ 

26,953 

26953 

440 

2804 

16267 
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Senior 6279 85.6 0 0 60 0.8 88 
management 
[Levels 13 -16) 

Contract 24 100 0 0 0 0 0 
[Levels 1 - 2) 

Contract 81 100 0 0 0 0 0 
(Levels 6 - 8) 

TOTAL 21328 79.1 0 0 357 1.3 689 

EMPLOYMENT AND VACANCIES 

Employment and vacancies by Programme, 31 March 201 6 

Programme I Number of posts I Number of posts filled 
I 

Vacancy rate 

Gp:World Heritage Site, 
Permanent 

Total COH WHS 

63 

63 

58 

58 

8% 

8% 

Employment and vacancies by salary bands, 31 March 201 6 

Salary ba�cf" ,- " "• i,i��ber of 'posts''' - Numbe� ot pos

r,r;>,� • � 
., 
. ' 

, 
• 

r ., r < � 'I. 

Lower skilled (Levels 1 

t2), Permanent 

Skilled (Levels 3 - 5), 
Permanent 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6 - 8), Permanent 

Highly skilled supervison 
(Levels 9 - 12), 
Permanent 

tSenior management 
[Levels 13 - 16), 
Permanent 

6 

17 

31 

8 

63 

0 

6 0 

16 5.90% 

29 6.50% 

6 25% 

58 8% 

1.2 7337 

0 241 

0 81 

2.6 2695 

II 
. - . . . 

- . . . . . � . 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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Employment and vacancies by critical occupation, 31 March 2016 

•• •

Administrative related, 
Permanent 

� 
Finance and economic 
related, Permanent 

Financial and related 
professionals, Permanent 

Finance clerks and credit 
controllers, Permanent 

Head of department/ 
chief of executive officer, 
Permanent 

Human resources 

I 
and organisational 
development and 
related, Permanent 

Other administrative 
policy and related 
officers, Permanent 

Secretaries and other 
keyboard operating 
clerks, Permanent 

Senior managers, 
Permanent 

JOB EVALUATION 

17 

2 2 

2 2 

3 3 

3 

16 14 

7 7 

8 7 

5 5 

63 58 

:Vacancy rote 
I 

No of posts filled 
additional to the 
establishment 

0 

0 

0 

0 

66.70% 

12.5% 

0 

0 

7.90% 

Job evalulation, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Lower skilled jLevelsl 0 0 0 0 
1 - 2) 

Skilled !Levels 3 - 5) 6 0 0 0 0 0 

Highly skilled 17 0 0 0 0 0 
production !Levels 
6 - 8) 

Highly skilled 31 4 12.90% 25.00% 0 
supervision !Levels 
9- 12)

Senior Management 5 0 0 0 0 0 
Service Band A 

Senior Management 2 0 0 0 0 0 
Service Band B 

Senior Management ii 0 0 0 0 0 
Service Band D 

63 4 12.90% 0.25 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts 

being upgraded, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Beneficiaries j Af11ain I Asian j Coloured I \X/l11te I Total 

Female 0 0 0 

Male O �-� O ��- O ____ O ___ O 
Total o o 1 o 1 

Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determination by job 

evaluation, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

• 

14 15 Retention 

Senior Manager 1 13 14 Retention 

Deputy Director 

t-
12 13 Retention 

Environment 11 12 Scarcity of skill 

Website 1,1 12 Scarcity of skill 
Copywriting and 
Editing 

Registry Clerk 4 5 Retention 

Total number of employees whose salaries exceeded the level determined by job evaluation 6 

Profile of employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by job 

evaluation, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

EMPLOYMENT CHANGES 

Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 

2016 

Sala}y •band. -�: . Number ot'�rnpioyees; per 
I .. · . ' band as on 1 April 2015 

, · · . . . de 

Skilled (Levels 3 - 5), 
Permanent 

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6 - 8), Permanent 

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12), Permanent 

Senior Management 
Service Band A, Permanent 

Senior Management 
Service Band B, Permanent 

Senior Management 
Service Band C, Permanent 

Contract (Levels 1-2), 
Permanent 

Contract (Levels 6 - 8), 
Permanent 

7 

26 

4 

2 

0 

0 

5 

10 

3 

0 

o I

0 

-+ 

0 

0 

0 

0
1 

1 

0 

0 

. 
" 

---

0 

14.30% 

0 

0 

0 

100% 

0 

0 

II 
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Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 

March 2016 

Occupation I Number of employees Appointments and I Terrrunat,ons and I Turnover rate 
per occupation as on 1 transfers into the transfers out of the 
April 2014 department department 

Administrative related, 
Permanent 

Finance and economics 
related, Permanent 

Finance and related 
professionals, Permanent 

Finance clerks and credit 
controllers, Permanent 

Head of department/ 
chief executie officer, 
Permanent 

Human resources 
and organisational 
development and 
related, Permanent 

Other administrative 
policy and related 
officers, Permanent 

Secretaries and other 

r 

keyboard operating 

_j_ clerks, Permanent 

12 5 0 

0 2 0 

2 0 0 

- --- -

2 0 

1 I 0 0 

12 3 0 

4 3 0 

4 5 

0 

ol 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Senior managers, 4 25.00% 
1 Permanent 

Total 41 zo z 4.90% 

Reasons why staff are leaving the department 

Resignation 50 

Retirement 

-=-T-
50 

Total 2 100 

Resignations as o/o of employment 

2.4 

2.4 

4.8 

4.8 

Total Total employment 

2 

41 

41 

41 

Granting of employee initiated severance packages 

.. 

Lowered skilled (Salary 0 

level 1 - 2) 

Skilled (Salary level 3 - 5) 0 

Highly skilled production 0 
(Salary level 6 - 8) 

Highly skilled production 0 
(Salary level 9 - 12) 

Senior management 0 
(Salary level 13 and 
higher) 

Total 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

No of applicauons No of packages 
upported by MPSA approved by deRartment 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

---

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 
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Occup.ilion I Employee as at I I Promotions to I Salary level I Progressions to I No.eh progressions 
April 20 I!> another salary level promotions as a % anot11er notch as a % of 

ol employees by w,thin a salary level employees by 
occupation occupation 

related 
Finance and related 2 0 0 2 100 
professionals 
Financial clerks and 2 0 0 2 100 
credit controllers 
Head of 0 0 0 0 
department/chief 
executive officer 
Human resources 12 8.3 9 75 
and organisational 
development and 

100
1 

related Permanent 
Other administrative 4 0 0 4 
policy and related 
officers 
Secretaries and 

l
4 0 0 3 75 

other keyboard 
operating clerks 
Senior managers 4 0 0 2 50 

Total 41 1 2.4 31 75.6 

Promotions by salary band 

Salary bond I Employees 1 April Promotions to I Salary qonds Progressions to · · 
I 

Notch progressions 
2015 another salary level promotions as a % another notch as a % of 

of employees by within a salary level employees by salary 
salary level bond 

Permanent 
Highly skilled 7 0 0% 6 85.7 
production (levels 6 

-8), Permanent
--+1 Highly skilled 26 3.8 24 92.3 

supervision (Levels 
9 -1 2) Permanent 
Senior management 7 0 0 0 0 
(Levels 13-16) 
Permanent 
Total 41 2.4% 31 75.6% 

-----

II 
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EMPLOYMENT EQUITY 

senior 
officials and 
managers, 
Permanent 

Professionals, 
Permanent 

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals, 
Permanent 

Clerks, 
Permanent 

Total 

Senior 
management, 
Permanent 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists 
and mid 
management, 
Permanent 

Skilled 
technical and 
academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents, 
Permanent 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 
decision-making, 
Permanent 

Unskilled 
and defined 
decision making, 
Permanent 

Ota 

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of 

the following occupational categories as on 31 March 2016 

:I-
I 

8 0 0 6 2 0 1
f 

18 

10 1 9 0 24 

I 
0 0 0 7 1 0 10 

21 , , 5 22 3 2 3 58 

Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of 

the following occupational bands as on 31 March 201 6 

2 1 I 0 0 0 11 6 

13 0 0 5 7 2 29 

J 3 0 0 0 11 0 16 

2 0 0 0 4 0 0 0 6 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 --7 
1 , 5 22 3 2 3 58 
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Recruitment for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 2016 

Occupational bands ' Male 
-

Female : 

Professionally 2 0 0 0 

qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and 
mid management, 
Permanent 

Skilled technical 3 0 0 0 7 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents, 
Permanent 

Semi-skilled and 0 0 0 4 
discretionary 
decision-making, 
Permanent 

Contract (skilled 0 0 0 0 

technical), 
Permanent 

Contract (unskilled), 0 0 0 0 

Permanent 

Total 8 0 0 1 11 

Promotions for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 

African Coloured Indian White African 

Professionally 11 0 0 4 7 

qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid 
management, 
Permanent 

Skilled technical 0 0 0 0 4 

and academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents, 
Permanent 

Semi-skilled and 0 0 0 0 

discretionary 
decision-making, 
Permanent 

Total 12 0 0 4 11 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

March 2016 

Coloured Indian 

2 

_J_ 

0 

3 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

White 

1 

j 
0 

0 

1 

3 

10 

5 

.. II 
+-

1 

0 20 

0 25 

6 

0 

1 32 
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Terminations for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 2016 

Top management, 0 0 0 0 
permanent 

Skilled technical 0 0 0 0 0 
and academically 
qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents, 
permanent 

Total l 0 0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 2016 

Disciplinary 0 0 0 
action 

Performance rewards by race, gender and disability 

ol 

0 2 

0 0 

r:·N�m�r,_ofi'.{ '/ :C;: ,'rotofel!'ploy_merit Percentage of total Cost (R 000) Average cost �r 
��f[ciarJ���}'.,j;'. '<, ;;- · ;:<_· . >: employment beneficiary (R 

African, Female 

African, Male 

Asian, Female 

Asian, Male 

Coloured, Female 

Coloured, Male 

Total blacks, Female 

Total Blacks, Male 

t- -

-- -

----

-----

White, Female 
-+-White, Male 

Employees with a 
disability 

Total 

11 21 

12 21 

2 

0 

3 3 

0 

15 26 

12 23 

3 

4 5 

33 58 

52.4 

57.1 

50 

0 

100 

0 

57,7 

52.2 

33.3 

80 

100 

56.9 

-- -

111 10,047 

154 12,823 

12 12,107 

0 0 

29 9,719 

0 0 

152 10,119 

154 12,823 

8 7,654 

54 13,727 

14 13,968 

381 11,557 

Performance Rewards by Salary Band for personnel below Senior Management 

Services 

. . • 
. . 

Skilled (Levels 3 - 5) 6 16.7 6 6,000 

Highly skilled 7 16 43.8 59 8,429 
production (Levels 
6 - 8) 

----

Highly skilled 25 30 83.3 316 12,640 
supervision (Levels 
0 _ 1 ?\ 
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Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation 

. . 

Administrative 
related 

Finance and 

• 

economics related 

Financial and 
related profesisonals 

Finance clerks and 
credit controllers 

Head of 
department/chief 
executive officer 

Human resources 
and organisational 
development and 
related 

Other administrative 
policy and related 
officers 

Rank : Unknown 

Secretaries and 
other keyboard 
operating clerks 

Senior managers 

Total 

l 

0 2 0 0 

2 2 100 24 

2 3 66.7 17 

0 ii 0 0 

10 14 71.4 133 

4 7 57.1 38 

0 J 0 0 

4 7 57.1 33 

2 4 50 27 

33 58 56.9 381 

Performance Related rewards (Cash bonus} by Salary Band for Senior 

Management Services 

Band A 

Band B 

Total 

.. 

FOREIGN WORKERS 

0 

0 

0 

4 

2 

6 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Foreign workers, 1 April 201 5 - 31 March 2016, by salary band 

Salary IJand 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 - 12) 

Total 

100 

1 100 

Change 

100 

1 100 

0 

0 

0 

0 

12,000 

8,500 

0 

13,300 

9,500 

0 

8,250 

13,500 

11,545 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

II 
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Foreign Worker, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 2016, by major occupation 

Number % of total Number % of total Number % change 

Professionals 100 100 0 
and managers 

Total 0 

LEAVE UTILISATION FOR THE PERIOD 1 JANUARY - 31 DECEMBER 201 5 

Sick leave, 1 January to 31 December 201 5 

Salary_band > ,-

, -

, �" ' 
' 

�� - �  ... �- . 

Skilled (Levels 2 
3 - 5) 

Highly skilled 29 
production 
(Levels 6 - 8) 

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9 -12) 

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13 -16) 

Total 

0 

65.5 5 

52 75 13 

27 70.4 5 

110 10 24 

employees days per cost (R 000) number of number of 
I % of total Average I Estimated Total Total 

using sick employee employees days with 
leave using sick medical 

leave certification 

4.2 2 24 0 

20.8 6 34 24 19 -1
54.2 4 129 24 39 

20.8 5 125 24 19 

100 5 289 24 11 

Disability leave (temporary and permanent), 1 January to 31 December 201 5 

Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Annual leave, 1 January to 31 December 201 5 

. . .. - .. • • • --

Skilled (Levels 3 -5) 4 4 

Highly skilled production 143 24 6 
(Levels 6 - 8) 

Highly skilled supervision 510 20 26 
(Levels 9 -12) 

Senior management (Levels 154 22 7 
13-16) 

Total 811 20 40 



Human Resources Tourism Projects Annual Report 2015/2016 

Capped leave for January to December 201 5 

Salary band 

- .

supervision 
(Levels 9 - 121 

+ 
Senior 
management 
(levels 13 - 16) 

Total 

Total days of 
capped leave 
taken 

3 

4 

Average number 
of days taken 
per· employee 

3 

2 

Average capped 
leave per 
employee as at 
31 ·· December 
2015 

0 

17 

Number of 
employees who 
tool< capped 
leave 

1 

2 

+ 

Total number of 
capped leave 
available at 3 I 
December 20 I 5 

0 

146 

Number of 
employees as at 
31 December 
2015 

8 

Leave payouts for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2016 

.. • • • . - . . . . - Average amount per emRloyee 
Total 0 0 0 

HIV/AIDS AND HEALTH PROMOTION PROGRAMMES 

Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure 

Units/categories of employees 

identified to be at high risk of 
contracting HIV and related diseases 
(if any) 

Details of Health Promotion and HIV/ 
AIDS Programmes 

I . Has the department designated 
a member of the SMS to implement 
the provisons contained in Part VI 
E of Chapter 1 of the Public Service 
Regualtions, 20017 If so provide his/her 
name and position 
2. Does the department have a dedicated
unit or has it designated specific staff 
members to promote the health aud 
well being of your employees 7 If so, 
indicate the number of employees who
are involved in this task and the annual
budget that is available for this purpose.
3. Has the department introduced an
Employee Assistance or Health Promotion
Progarmme for your employees 7 If so, 
indicte the key elements/service of this
Programme.
4. Has the department established (al
committee(s) as contemplated in Part 
VI E.S(e) of Chapter I of the Public 
Service Regulations, 200 I 7 If so, please
provide the names of the members of the 
committee and the stakeholder(s) of the 
Programme.
5. Has the department reviewed its 
employment policies and practices
to ensure that these do not unfairly
discriminate against employees on the
bvasis of their HIC status 7 If so, list
the employement policies/practices so

Key steps taken to reduce the risk 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

t--
Yes 

Yes 

I 

j 
The organisation makes use of the services Iof DED in this regard 

�-� 
The organisation makes use of the services 
of OED in this regard 

The GSSC has an EAP/wellness 
programme for all personnel of the GPG 

i -
The organisation makes use of the services 
of DED in this regard 

HIV/AIDS policy of OED accepted 

II 
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6. Has the department introduced - T 
measures to protect HIV positive 
employees or those perceived to be HIV
positive from discrimination 7 If so, list the
key elements of these measures.

7. Does the department encourage
its employees to undergo Voluntary
Counselling and testing 7 If so, list the 
results that you have achieved. 

8. Has the department developed 
measures/indicators to monitor and 
evaluate the impact of its health
promotion programme 7 If so, list these
measures/Indicators 

LABOUR RELATIONS 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

-,----- --
-, 

The organisation makes use of the services 
of DED in this regard 

This forms part of DED services for 
personnel 

Personnel makes use of DED services in 
this regard 

Collective agreements, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Nil 

Misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised, 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 

. .

Total 0 0 0 

Types of misconduct addressed at discplinary hearings 

.. 

Total 0 0 0 

Grievance lodged for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Number of grievances 0 

resolved 

Number of grievances 

}not resolved 
--

Total number of 
grievances lodged 

�f total · . · · 1 rora, 

0 

100 

100 

------

0 

100 

100 

Disputes lodged with Councils for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 2016 

Number of disputes 0 0 

upheld 

Number of disputes 0 0 

dismissed 

Total number of 0 0% 

disputes lodged 
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Strike actions for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Total number of person 
working days lost 
Total cost (R'OOO) of 
working days lost 
Amount (R'OOO) 
recovered as a result of 
no work no pay 

Number , I 91, of fo_tal , 
0 

0 

0 

l 

0 

0 

0 

Precautionary suspensions for the period 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Number of people suspended 
Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 
Average number of days suspended 

--+ 
Cost (R'OOO) of suspensions 

SKILLS DEVELOPMENT 

0 
0 
0 
0 

Training provided 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Legislators, Female National Tourism 
senior officials Planning and 
and managers Co-ordinating 

Forum 

Legislators, Male Capacity 
senior officials building for 
and managers policy makers 

Global Summit 
on City Tourism 
Practical MS 
Office 2007 and 
2010 

Professionals Female 

Professionals Male Director 
Development 
course 
National Tourism 
Planning and 
Co-ordinating 
Forum 
Building capacity 
for conservation 
and resource 
management in 
Africa 
Craft Sector 

Ot��r forms of 
I 

Total 
trmmng 

Construction 
Industry 
Development 
Board 
Postgraduate 
Conference 

World Heritage 
Convention 
Committee 
UNESCO 
World Heritage 
Committee 

----

Postgraduate 
diploma in 
Public and 
Development 
Management 
Masters in 
Business 
Administration 

II 
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Occupa_tional Gender:;;�;:�f,fy�
I 

Employment 

1 

·Learnerships_ ··

1

:Skills Ot��r forms of Total . categories . - - Iprogrammes training · · 
, . · ·, land other short · 

·, 
·. · · -- ··: I.courses ·. 

, � � 
1::
4'-- 1->< 

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals 

Clerks 

Clerks 

Female 

Male 

Female 

Male 

L 

----

United Nations 
Institute for 
Training and 
Research: 
Management 
and 
Conservation of 
world heritage 
sites 

Professional 
Certificate in 
Government 
Communications 
and Marketing 

Injury on duty, 1 April 201 5 to 31 March 201 6 

Nature of inJury on duty I Number

Required basic medical attention 

Temporary total disablement 

Permanet disablement 

Fatal 

---+-

Total 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

% of total 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Bachelor of 
Commerce 

+ 

- --+- -- ---
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